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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

Your Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting the 31st Annual Report of your Company along

with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2023. The

Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS).

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

Particulars (Rs in Lac)
Profit Before Taxation (excluding Other Comprehensive Income) 4,199.41
Less: Provision for Current Tax 1,120.00
Less: Deferred Tax 12.84
Less: Income Tax relating to previous year 0
Profit After Taxation (excluding Other Comprehensive Income) 3,066.57
Add: Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) (0.35)
Add : Transfer from Equity Instrument through OCI on realization (1,086.53)
Add : Balance of Profit from Previous year (excluding Other Comprehensive 40,989.92
Income)
Total 42,969.61
APPROPRIATIONS :
Transfer to Statutory Reserve (as per RBI Guidelines) 613.31
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet (excluding Other Comprehensive Income) 42,356.30
Total 42,969.61

WORKING RESULTS AND STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

Total income during the year under review amounted to ¥4,579.05Lac as against X5,875.58 Lac in the

preceding year. Profit before and after tax amounted to 24,199.41 Lac and %3,066.57 Lac respectively

as against X5,559.76 Lac and X3,905.82 Lac respectively in the previous year excluding Other

Comprehensive Income.

The Company continues to remain registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company with the Reserve

Bank of India.

No material changes and commitments have occurred after the close of the year till the date of this

report, which affect the financial position of the Company.

DIVIDEND

To further strengthen the financial position of the Company and to conserve resources, the Board has

decided to retain the earnings and does not propose any dividend.

. J




31ST ANNUAL REPORT DIGVIJAY FINLEASE LIMITED

CIN No. U67120WB2001PLC093899
e N

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company has only one class of shares —equity shares of par value X10/- each. The Authorised Share
Capital of the Company stands at X 20 Crore divided into 2 Crore equity shares of X10/- each. The paid-
up equity share capital of the Company stood at *1325.94 Lac as at 31st March, 2023. During the year,
the Company has notissued any shares.

TRANSFER TO RESERVE FUND

Pursuant to section 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, non-banking financial companies (NBFCs)
are required to transfer a sum not less than 20% of their net profit every year to reserve fund before
declaration of any dividend. Accordingly, the Board proposes to transfer *613.31 Lac to Reserve Fund
andthe balance profitis retained in the Profitand Loss Account.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS:

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts / Tribunals which would
impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

PUBLICDEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposit from the public during the year nor does it hold any public
depositas at the end of the financial year.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

The Company, being a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) registered under Chapter IlIB of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934), is exempt from complying with the provisions of Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to activities of Investments, disclosure of loans and
guarantees.

SUBSIDIARY /JOINT VENTURES / ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary/Joint Venture / Associate Company, hence the information
pertaining to the sameis not applicable.

DEMATERIALISATON OF COMPANY’S SHARES AND REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT (RTA)

The Company has made arrangements with NSDL to offer facility of dematerialisation of securities toits
shareholders. The ISIN allotted by the said depository to the Company is — INEO1US01017. Members
holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holding to dematerialized
form to eliminate risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management and
transaction of transfer. Members may contact their Depository Participant for assistance in this regard.

Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd. (MDPL) is acting as Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company
for both electronic and physical form of shareholdings including transmission and transposition. All
communications relating to shares should be addressed to the RTA at 23, R.N. Mukherjee Road, 5th
Floor, Kolkata—700001. Email ID of the RTA is digvijay@mdplcorporate.com
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had not entered into any significantly material contract / arrangement /
transactions with related parties, except for remuneration paid to the key managerial personnel, sitting
fees paid to the directors and rent paid to the enterprise having significant influence over this Company
which are in the ordinary course of business pursuant to Ind AS 24 and are suitably disclosed in Note
No.30 of the Financial Statements forming part of this Annual Report. The required disclosure of such
transactions under section 134(3) (h) of the Actis enclosed in form AOC-2 forming part of this Report.

INTERNALFINANCIALCONTROL

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with its size, scale,
nature of business and operations with reference to its financial statements. The Company has
appointed internal auditors who review the internal financial control system. These have been
designed to provide reasonable assurance about recording and providing reliable financial
information, ensuring integrity in conducting business, accuracy and completeness in maintaining
accounting records and prevention and detection of frauds and errors.

RISKMANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors has adopted a risk management policy for the Company which provides for
identification, assessment, control and governance of risks which, in the opinion of the Board, may
pose significant loss or threat to the Company. The Policy is formulated in compliance with the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The main identified risks at the Company are Commercial Risks, Financial Risks, Operational Risks and
Legal & Regulatory Risks. The Company has Risk Management Committee as required by the Reserve
Bank of India guidelines comprising of three members, namely Shri Ashok Bhandari (Chairman), Shri
Ravi Goenka (Director) and Shri K. K. Thakur (CFO), who has been assigned the task of management and
mitigation of risk to the Company’s operations.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Company has four directors on its Board. In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Company’s Articles of Association, Shri Gourav Periwal (DIN: 08643886) Director of the
Company retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

The Board recommends the re-appointment and accordingly resolution seeking approval of the
members for the re-appointment has been included in the Notice of forthcoming Annual General
Meeting of the Company.

Shri Ravi Goenka and Shri S. K. Mukherjee continue to be the Independent Directors of the Company
appointed for a period of five years from their respective dates of appointment, not liable to retire by
rotation. The Independent Directors have appropriate skill, knowledge and experience in the business
carried on by the Company. The Company has received declarations from both the Independent
Directors confirming that they meet the criteria of Independence as prescribed under the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Board hereby confirms that it is satisfied with such declarations.

Shri K.K. Thakur is the Manager and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. During the year under
review, Shri K.K. Thakur was re-appointed as Manager and Chief Financial Officer of the Company by
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the members at the 30th Annual General Meeting for a period of 5 (five) years commencing from 1st
September, 2022.

Shri Sumit Jainis the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company.
AUDITORS:
Statutory Auditors

M/s S Jaykishan, Chartered Accountants having Firm Registration No. 309005E, who are Statutory
Auditors of the Company, were appointed by the Company to hold office until the conclusion of the
32nd Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2024 subject to review of their performance by the
Board every year. In accordance with the RBI directives, the Board and the Audit Committee have
reviewed the performance of the statutory auditors and the Board has decided their continuation as
statutory auditors as per recommendation of the Audit Committee for the year 2023-24. The Members
are required to fix remuneration of the Statutory Auditors for the financial year ending 31st March,
2024 and authorise the Board suitably in the matter through resolution in consultation with the
auditors.

The Statutory Auditors have confirmed that they satisfy the eligibility / independence criteria required
under the Companies Act, 2013 and The Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

The audit report by M/s S Jaykishan, for the FY2023 is unmodified, i.e., it does not contain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer and hence does not require any explanation
or clarification by the Board.

Cost Audit

Pursuant to provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 cost audit as specified by the Central
Governmentis not applicable to the Company.

Tax Auditor

The Board of Directors has appointed M/s S Jaykishan, Chartered Accountants, to carry out the Tax
Audit forthe Assessment Year 2023-24.

Internal Auditor

The Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee had appointed M/s D. K.
Parmanandka & Co., Chartered Accountants, having Firm Registration Number: 322388E to carry out
the Internal Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the reporting period, the statutory auditors had not reported to the audit committee/Board,
under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, any instance of fraud committed against the
Company by its officers or employees, and hence the requirement to mention the same in this report is
notapplicable.




31ST ANNUAL REPORT DIGVIJAY FINLEASE LIMITED

CIN No. U67120WB2001PLC093899

7

NUMBER OF MEETINGS:

Meetings of Board and its Committees are held as per statutory requirements and as per business
needs. Due to business exigencies, the Board and Committees have also been approving proposals by
circulation from time to time.

Board Meeting

During the year, five Board Meetings and one meeting of the Independent Directors were convened
and held. The intervening gap between the meetings of the Board was within the period prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013.

COMMITTEES OF THEBOARD

The Board has formed following Committees besides Risk Management Committee in compliance of
the provisions of the Act and the Reserve Bank of India directives as applicable to NBFC with relevant
policy frame work for the same and guidelines for their functioning:-

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of two Independent Directors namely, Shri Ravi Goenka (Chairman),
Shri Sudip Kumar Mukherjee and a Non Independent non-executive Director Shri Ashok Bhandari. Shri
SumitJain acts as Secretary to the Committee. The Committee met two times during the year.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The Company has a Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprising of two independent directors
and one non- independent director namely, Shri Ravi Goenka (Chairman), Shri Sudip Kumar Mukherjee
and one Non-independent non-executive Director namely Shri Ashok Bhandari. The Committee met
onceduringtheyear.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of Directors was re-constituted during the year under review by
inducting Shri Ravi Goenka, an Independent Director as a member thereof in place of Shri Ashok
Bhandari. The Committee now comprises of two independent directors namely, Shri Ravi Goenka
(Chairman), Shri Sudip Kumar Mukherjee and one non- independent director namely Shri Gaurav
Periwal and Shri Krishna Kumar Thakur, Manager and Chief Financial Officer of the Company for the
purpose of attending to investors’ grievances including transfer / transmission / transposition of shares
of the Company. The Committee met three times during the year.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

The CSR Committee of the Board comprises of three members, of which two are independent directors
and one non-executive director namely Shri Sudip Kumar Mukherjee (Chairman), Shri Ravi Goenka and
Shri Gaurav Periwal respectively. The Committee met once during the reporting period.

This year the Company has contributed to “SHREE FOUNDATION TRUST”, a trust undertaking various
CSR activities for promotion of Rural Development Projects as part of CSR activities.

N
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The Annual Report on CSR activities of FY 2022-23 with requisite details in the specified format as
required under Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is annexed hereto and
forms part of this report.

The CSR Policy of the Company is also annexed hereto and forms part of this Report.
Finance and Assets Liability Supervisory Committee (ALCO)

Finance and Assets Liability Supervisory Committee (ALCO) of Directors comprises of Non- Executive
Directors namely Shri Ashok Bhandari (Chairman) and Shri Gourav Periwal as other member of the
Committee.

Investment / Credit Committee

Investment/Credit Committee of Directors comprises of two members namely Shri Ashok Bhandari
(Chairman) and Shri Ravi Goenka as other member of the Committee.

Grievance Redressal Mechanism Committee

Grievance Redressal Mechanism Committee of Directors comprises of three members, namely Shri
Ravi Goenka (Chairman), Shri Sudip Kumar Mukherjee and one non- independent director namely Shri
Gaurav Periwal.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A separate section on the Company’s corporate governance practices, as per RBI Circular No. RBI/2022-
23/26 DOR.ACC.REC.N0.20/21.04.018/2022-23 dated 19.04.2022 applicable for unlisted NBFC'’s is
provided as part of this report.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The Board has on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed a policy,
inter alia, for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management including criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of directors which is annexed hereto
and forms part of this Report. Further, Policy relating to remuneration for the directors, key managerial
personneland other employeesis also annexed hereto and forms part of this Report.

The Board of Directors of the Company follows the criteria for determining qualification, positive
attributes, independence of Directors as per applicable policies of the Company.

Directors are appointed /re-appointed with the approval of the Members for a term in accordance with
the provisions of the law and the Articles of Association of the Company. All Directors, other than
Independent Directors, are liable to retire by rotation, unless otherwise specifically provided under the
Articles of Association or under any statute or terms of appointment.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has always provided a congenial atmosphere for work that is free from discrimination
and harassment, including sexual harassment. Keeping in view the problem of sexual harassment the
company has framed a policy to prevent incidents of sexual harassment as required under Sexual

N
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Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules
framed there under. The Policy aims to provide protection to employees at the workplace and prevent
and redress complaints of sexual harassment and for matters connected or incidental thereto, with the
objective of providing a safe working environment, where employees feel secure. However,
constitution of Internal Committee as required under the Act is not applicable to the Company since
the company has less than 10 employees. All employees are covered under this Policy. During the year
under review, the Company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment, hence no disclosure
isapplicable.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Company does not have any website therefore disclosure under section 134 (3) (a) of the Companies
Act, 2013 is notapplicable.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
under historical cost convention on accrual basis except for certain financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values pursuant to the provisions of the Act. Accounting policies have been
consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision
to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy. These form part of the
Notes to the financial statements.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of
Directors of the Company hereby states and confirms that:

i) in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year 2022-23, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any

ii) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the
Company for FY 2022-23;

iii) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

V) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and are operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

None of the employees is drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set out in Rule 5(2) of the
Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 appended to the
CompaniesAct, 2013.




31ST ANNUAL REPORT

DIGVIJAY FINLEASE LIMITED

CIN No. U67120WB2001PLC093899

s N
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND
OUTGO

A. Conservation of Energy
(i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of | The Company’s operations are not
energy; energy-intensive. Therefore, there is
(i) the steps taken by the company for utilizing | no need to take measures to
alternate sources of energy; conserve the consumption of energy.
(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation
equipments;
B. Technology Absorption
(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption; Operations of the Company do not
(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost | involve any kind of special
reduction, product development or import | technology and there was no
substitution; expenditure on research &
(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the | development during the financial
last three years reckoned from the beginning of the | year.
financial year)-
(a) the details of technology imported;
(b) the year of import;
(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed;
(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption
has not taken place, and the reasons thereof;
and
(iv) the expenditure incurred on research and
Development.
C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo
Details of Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo during the year are as follows.
Foreign Exchange Earnings NIL
Foreign Exchange Outgo NIL
TRANSFER OF SHARES ONLY IN DEMAT MODE
The transfer of securities can be processed only in dematerialized form. Further, securities of the
Company shall be issued in dematerialized form only while processing service requests in relation to
issue of duplicate securities certificate, renewal / exchange of securities certificate, endorsement, sub-
division / splitting of securities certificate, consolidation of securities certificates/folios, transmission
and transposition. Accordingly, Members are requested to make service requests by submitting a duly
filled and signed Form ISR — 4, the format of which is available on the website of the Company’s
Registrar and Transfer Agents — MDPL. It may be noted that any service request can be processed only
after the folio is KYC Compliant.
§ J
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UPDATING KYC DETAILS

The shareholders holding shares in physical form should update their PAN, KYC, bank details etc with
the RTA. The investor service requests forms for updation of PAN, KYC, Bank details and Nomination
viz., Forms ISR-1, ISR-2, ISR-3, SH-13, SH-14 are available on the website of the RTA www.mdpl.in. In
view of the above, we urge the shareholders to submit the Investor Service Request form along with the
supporting documents.

In respect of shareholders who hold shares in the dematerialized form and wish to update their PAN,
KYC, Bank Detailsand Nomination are requested to contact their respective Depository Participants.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors take this opportunity to place on record the co-operation and support received from the
shareholders for their committed engagement with the Company. Your Directors also wish to place on
record their deep sense of appreciation to the Company's employees and take this opportunity to
thank them and hope that they will maintain their commitment to excellence in the years to come.

For and on behalf of the Board

Place : Kolkata

(GOURAV PERIWAL)

Dated: 30" June, 2023 DIN: 08643886

(5.K. MUKHERJEE)
DIN: 00029362
Directors
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FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto

Sl No. | Particulars Amount (Rs.)
1 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length NIL
basis
(a) | Name(g) of the related party and nature of relationship -
(b) | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions -
(c) | Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions -
@ Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions
including the value, if any )
© Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or
transactions )
(f) | date(s) of approval by the Board -
(g) | Amount paid as advances, if any: -
(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting
as required under first proviso to section 188 )
5 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length
basis
Shree Capital Services ltd. - having
(a) | Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship significant influence over the
Company
(b) | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Office Rent Agreement
(c¢) | Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions 3 years from F.Y. 2020-21
@ Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions Rent Rs. 24,000/~ per annum plus
including the value, if any: GST
(e) | Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 6% July, 2020
(f) | Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL
\. J
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ANNUALREPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES
1. Briefoutline on CSR Policy of the Company

The Company aims to focus on environment preservation, spreading education, promoting sports,
rural development and supporting needy people of the society for their overall upliftment. Though its
social activities are to focus primarily on areas surrounding its operations, which may include
people/programs which may not be so related strictly considering overall upliftment objectives.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

The CSR Committee comprises 3 members, of which 2 are Independent Directors. The Committee met
once during the reporting period on 20th February, 2023. The details of members and the meeting are
asunder:

SL Name of Designation/ Nature of Number of meeFlngs Numbe_r of meetings of C.SR
No. . . . of CSR Committee Committee attended during
Director Directorship .
held during the vear the vear
. . Chairman
! St S.K. Mukherjee (Independent Director) ! !
2 Sri Ravi Goenka Member 1 1
(Independent Director)
Member
3 Sn1 Gourav Periwal ( Non-executive 1 1
Non-Independent Director)

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the
board are disclosed on the website of the company.

NIL

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report)

Not Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial
year, ifany:

(RsLacs)
Sl Financial Year Amount available for set-off | Amount required to be set-
No. from preceding financial | off for the financial year, if
vears (in Rs) any (in Rs)
NIL

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) : Rs. 1831.28 Lacs

N
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7.(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) : Rs.36.63 Lacs

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years:

0.03 Lac

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: 0.03 Lac

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b- 7c): Rs.36.60 Lacs

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total
Spent
Financial Year
(in Rs. Lacs)

for

Amount

Amount Unspent (in Rs. Lacs)

the

Total Amount transferred to
Unspent CSR Account as per
section 135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 135(5)

Amount

Date of transfer

Name of the
Fund

Amount

Date of transfer

Rs. 36.65

NIL

NIL

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

[&))

[&)]

@ @

) (6)

]

@)

®

an

L]

5L
No.

Name
of the
Project.

Item from the
list of activities
in Schedule VII
to the Act.

Local

ares
(Yes/Na).

Lacation of the
project.

Project
duration

Amount
allocated
for
project
(i Rs).

the
Rs).

Amount spent in

the carrent
financial Year (in

Amount

to
Unspent  CSR
Account for ihe
project as per
Section 135(6) (in
Rs).

Mode  of
Implements
tion -

Direct

(¥esNa).

Mode of Implementation -
Through
Agency

Implementing

Name

CSR
Registration
number.

NIL

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

1)

(&)

3

“

3

O]

)

3

SL

Name of the
Project

Item from
the list of
activities in
schedule VII
to the Act.

Local

area

(Yes/

No).

project.

Location of the

Amount
spent for

State.

District.

the project
(in T Lac).

Mode of
implementation -
Direct (Yes/No).

Mode of implementation -

Through implementing agency.

Name.

CSR
registration
number.

CC Road
construction
work at
Purulia

Rural
[Development
Project

Yes

West Bengal

36.65 Lacs

Shree
Foundation
Trust

CSR0O0000358

Total

36.65 Lacs

N\
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(d) Amount spentin Administrative Overheads—NIL
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable—NIL
(f) Totalamount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e)-Rs.36.65 Lac

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any

SL . Amount
No. Particular (Rs. Lacs)
(1) | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 36.63
(11) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 36.65
(ii1) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(i1)-(1)] 0.02
(1v) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the 0.03
previous financial years. if any
(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(111)-(1v)] 0.03

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

SL Preceding Amount Amount spent | Amount transferred to any fund specified | Amount
No. | Financial transferred to | in the | under Schedule VII as per section 135(6), if | remaining to
Year. Unspent CSR | reporting any. be spent in
Account under Financial Year succeeding
section 135 (6) (in Rs. Lacs) Name financial
(in Rs. Lacs) of the . years
Fund Amount (in Rs). | Date of transfer. (in Bs. Lacs)
1 2019-20 NIL 79.00 NIL NIL Not Applicable NIL
2. 2020-21 NIL 30.65 NIL NIL Not Applicable NIL
3. 2021-22 NIL 34.60 NIL NIL Not Applicable NIL
TOTAL 164.25

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

(0] 2 3) “@ ) ©6) ™ ®) ®
Sl | Project | Name of | Financial Project Total Amount Cumulative Status of the
No. | ID. the Year in | duration. amount spent on the | amount spent | project -
Project. which  the allocated | project in | at the end of
project was for the | the reporting Completed
commenced. project reporting Financial /Ongoing.
(in Rs.). Financial Year. (in Rs.)
Year (in
Rs).
NIL
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10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the assetso created
oracquired through CSR spentin the financial year (asset-wise details).

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): Not Applicable
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset:NotApplicable

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is
registered, theiraddress etc.: Not Applicable

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location
of the capital asset): Not Applicable

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as
persection 135(5) : Not Applicable

Place: Kolkata For Digvijay Finlease Limited
Date: 30t June, 2023
S.K. Mukherjee Gourav Periwal
Chairman of Director
CSR Commuittee DIN: 08643886

DIN: 00029362
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Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy)

Digvijay Finlease Limited (DFL) believes that for its operation and growth to be sustainable, it has to be
responsive to social needs. Its progress is thus underlined by strict adherence to environment
preservation, social upliftment, spread of education, promotion of sports etc. DFL believes in making
social developmentas anintegral part of its business activities so as to bring about a meaningful change
in the lives of people. DFL considers social responsibility as a voluntary act rather than an additional
activity mandated by statute.

DFL has in line with / in conformity with the statutory requirement, prepared its CSR Policy. DFL will
maintain that all the activities that will be undertaken by it will be in accordance with the policy and that
the projects and activities that will be undertaken are in full compliance with Schedule VII of the
CompaniesAct, 2013.

The contents of DFL's CSR Policy are given below:-
1. Vision, Objective and Scope of the Policy

DFL Programmes will include activities prescribed in the Act. Though its social activities will
be focusing primarily on areas surrounding its operations, it may include people / programs
which may not be so related strictly considering overall objectives.

2. Mandate of Corporate Social Responsibility

DFL is committed to spend 2% of its Average Net Profits of last three financial years as
defined in the Rules towards its social initiatives.

3. Board Committee

The CSR Committee of the Board will oversee the social activities to be undertaken by the
Company.

4. Identification of Projects and Modalities of Project Execution

The projects to be undertaken by the Company shall conform to the guidelines formulated or
laid down by the Government from time to time under Schedule VII to the Companies Act,
2013.

5. Organisational Mechanism

DFL will seek collaborative partnerships with like-minded stakeholders in order to widen the
Company'sreachinimplementingits CSR Policy.

6. Implementation

CSR Committee of the Board is entrusted with implementing the social activities / initiatives
and establishing a monitoring mechanism in line with the policy of the company.
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7. Budget-CSRCorpus

DFL will allocate necessary budget after the beginning of relevant accounting year for social
initiatives. Fund allocation for various activities will be made on suitable and/or progressive
basis.

8. Performance Management

DFL will adopt suitable approach for measuring the actual performance of the projects
undertaken whenever applicable and Audit Committee of the Board of the Company shall
review the performance.

9. Information Dissemination and Policy Communication

The Company's engagement in this domain shall be disseminated through its Annual
Reports.

10. Management Commitment

Our Board of Directors, Management and all of employees subscribe to the philosophy of
compassionate care. We believe and act on ethos of generosity and compassion,
characterised by a willingness to build a society that works for everyone. This is the
cornerstone of our CSR Policy.

11. Review of Policy

CSR Committee of the Board of Digvijay Finlease Limited will review the policy from time to
time based on the changing needs and aspirations of the target beneficiaries and make
suitable modifications as may be necessary.

For Digvijay Finlease Limited

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30th June, 2023

S.K. Mukherjee Gourav Periwal
Chairman of Director
CSR Committee DIN: 08643886

DIN: 00029362
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Policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management including criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of directors

Introduction

Digvijay Finlease Limited (DFL) believes that an enlightened Board consciously creates a culture of
leadership to provide along-term vision and policy approach toimprove the quality of governance.

DFL recognizes the importance of independent directors in achieving the effectiveness of the Board.
DFLaimsto have an optimum combination of Non-Executive and Independent Directors.

Scope and Exclusion

This Policy sets out the guiding principles for the Nomination & Remuneration Committee for
identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and to determine the independence of
Directors, in case of their appointment asindependent directors of the Company.

Terms and References

In this Policy, the terms shall have the following meanings:
“Director” means a director appointed to the Board of the Company.

“Nomination and Remuneration Committee” means the committee constituted by DFL's Board in
accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

“Independent Director” means a director referred to in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Policy

Qualifications and Criteria

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and the Board, shall review on an annual basis,
appropriate skills, knowledge and experience required of the Board as a whole and its individual
members. The objective is to have a Board with diverse background and experience that are relevant
for the Company's business operations.

In evaluating the suitability of individual Board members, the Committee may take into account factors
suchas:

> General understanding of the Company's business dynamics and social perspective;
> Educational and professional background;
> Standingin the profession;
> Personal and professional ethics, integrity and values;
> Willingness to devote sufficient time and zeal in carrying out their duties and responsibilities
effectively.
. J
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The proposed appointee shall also fulfill the following requirements:

» Shall possess a Director Identification Number (DIN);

» Shallnot be disqualified under the Companies Act, 2013;

» Shall give his written consent in prescribed form to act as a Director;

> Shall endeavor to attend all Board Meetings and wherever he is appointed as a Committee

Member, the Committee Meetings;

» Shall abide by the ethics policy established by the Company for Directors, employees and Senior
Management Personnel;

» Shall disclose his concern or interest in any Company or Companies or bodies corporate, firms,
or other association of individuals including his shareholding at the first meeting of the Board in
every financial year and thereafter whenever thereisa changein the disclosures already made;

» Such other requirements as may be prescribed, from time to time, under the Companies Act,
2013 and otherrelevant laws.

The Committee shall evaluate each individual with the objective of having a group that best enables the
success of the Company's business.

Criteria of Independence

The Committee shall assess the independence of Directors at the time of appointment / re-
appointment and the Board shall assess the same annually. The Board shall re-assess determination of
independence when any new interests or relationships are disclosed by the Director.

To follow the criteria ofindependence as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013.

The Independent Directors shall abide by the “Code for Independent Directors” as specified in
Schedule IVtothe CompaniesAct, 2013.

Other directorships /committee memberships
The Board members are expected to have adequate time, expertise and experience to contribute to
effective Board performance. The Committee shall take into account the nature of, and the time
involved in a Director's service on other Boards, in evaluating the suitability of the individual Director
and making its recommendations to the Board.

A Director shall not serve as Director in more than 20 companies of which not more than 10 shall be
Public Limited Companies.

A Director shall not serve as an Independent Director in more than 7 Listed Companies and not more
than 3 Listed Companiesin case heis serving as a Whole-time Director in any Listed Company.

A Director shall not be a member in more than 10 committees or act as Chairman of more than 5
committees across all companies in which he holds directorship.

Note: For the purpose of considering the limit of the Committees, Audit Committee and Stake
holders' Relationship Committee of all Public Limited Companies, whether listed or not, shall
be included and all other companies including Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies
and Companies under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 shall be excluded.
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Policy relating to remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees
Introduction
Digvijay Finlease Limited (DFL) recognizes the importance of aligning the business objectives with
specific and measurable individual objectives. The Company has therefore formulated the
remuneration policy for its directors, key managerial personnel and other employees keeping in
view the following objectives:
Ensuring that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate talent to run the Company successfully.
Ensuring that relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets the performance
benchmarks.
Ensuring that remuneration involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short
and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals.
However, thereis noincentive pay at present.

Scope and Exclusion
This Policy sets out the guiding principles for the Nomination and Remuneration Committee for
recommending to the Board the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and
other employees of the Company.

Terms and References

In this Policy, the terms shall have the following meanings:

“Director” means a director appointed to the Board of the Company.

“Key Managerial Personnel” means

i) the Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence a

Whole-time Director;

ii) the Company Secretary;

iii) the Chief Financial Officer; and

iv) such other officer as may be prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013

“Nomination and Remuneration Committee” means the committee constituted by DFL's Board in

accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

. J
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Policy

The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, shall review and
approve the remuneration payable to the Executive and Non-Executive Directors of the Company
within the overall limits subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company. Non-Executive
Directors shall be entitled to sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board and the Committees
thereof. In addition to the sitting fees the Non-Executive Directors shall be entitled to be paid their
reasonable traveling, hotel and other expenses incurred for attending Board and Committee meetings
orotherwiseincurredinthe discharge of their duties as Directors.

The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, shall also
review and approve the remuneration payable to the Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees
of the Company. Employee individual remuneration shall be determined according to their
qualifications, and work experience as well as their roles and responsibilities and shall be based on
various factors such as job profile, skill sets, seniority and experience.

The remuneration structure of the Executive Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other
Employees shall mainly include the following:

a) Basic Pay
b) Perquisites and Allowances

c) Retiral Benefits

N
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Report on Corporate Governance

A) Corporate Governance

(1) Composition of Board

Sl | Nameof  [Director Capacity DIN Number of No. | Remuneration (Rs.) No. of
N | Director  (Since (ie. Board of shares
0. Executive/ Meetings oth held in
Non- er and
E‘h“.“““’" Held :Etmn éc'“m Salary | Sitting [Comm 1:’“‘““"
Prun_m:}r d rshi ::t?er Fee lission i:t;“_h:ﬁe
ependen sation u
0 NBFC
1 g'“" “"Shl."k 23-122011 Ex?:élt‘m 00012210 | 5 s | 12| NL |20000-| NL | NIL
y | Shri IS-K 11-00-2014 | Tnd 00020362 | 5 s | 2| wmo | 20000- | NL| ML
LARY e - ependent 20362 3 000/~
3 | ShiRavi 3509010 | Ind 01303012 | 5 5 | s | NmLo|20000-|NL| ML
Goenka - ependent 2 5 5 .000/-
Shri Gourav Non- < .
4 | o e 27122010 | N | 08643886 | S 2 | 3| NI | sooo- | NIL | NL

Details of change in composition of the Board during the current and previous financial year.

Sl Name of Director Capacity (i.e. Executive/ Non-Executive/ Nature of Change Effective
No. Chairman/ Promoter nominee/ Independent) (resignation, Date
appointment)
No Change during the current and previous financial Year

There 13 no relationship infer-se between the Directors
(2) Committees of the Board and their Composition

(D) Audit Committee

Sl Name of Director Number of Meetings
No. Member of | Capacity (i.e. Executive/ of the Committee No. of shares
C“é;']’:‘:e“% Non-Executive/ Chairman/ held in NBFC
Promoter nominee/ Held Attended
Independent)
1 | Shn Ravi Goenka 30-04-201% | Independent - Chairman 2 2 NIL
2 | Shri Ashok Bhandari 21-03-2012 Non- Executive 2 2 NIL
3 | Shnt 5. K Mukherjee 12-03-2015 Independent 2 2 NIL
\ J
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(11) Nonunation and Remuneration Committee

sl Name of Director L . Number of Meetings
No. Member of Capacity (i.e. Executive/ of the Committee No. of shares
c . Non-Execntive/ Chairman/ held in NBFC
ommittee Promoter nominee/ Held Attended
smee Independent) ©
1 Shri Ravi Goenka 30-04-2012 Independent — Chairman 1 1 NIL
2 | Shri Ashok Bhandari 12-03-2015 Non- Executive 1 1 NIL
3 | Shri 5.K. Mukherjee 12-03-2015 Independent 1 1 NIL
(1) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
sl Name of Director L . Number of Meetings
No. Member of Capacity (i.e. Executive/ of the Committee No. of shares
\ Non-Executive/ Chairman/ held in NBFC
Cl]l].ll]llﬂel’. Promoter nominee/ Held |Attended
smee Independent)
1 Shri 5 K. Mukherjee 21-12-2017 Independent — Chairman 1 1 NIL
2 | Shri Ravi Goenka 30-04-2012 Independent 1 1 NIL
3 Shri Gourav Periwal 27-12-2019 Non- Executive 1 1 NIL
(v)  Stakeholder Relationship Commuttee
Sl Name of Director L . Number of Meetings
No. Member of Capacity (i.e. Executive/ of the Committee No. of shares
: Non-Executive/ Chairman/ held in NBFC
Con,lmltt" Promoter nominee/ Held Attended
smee Independent)
1 Shri Ravi Goenka 10-11-2022 | Independent — Chairman 3 1 NIL
2 | Shri Ashok Bhandani® 12-03-2015 Non- Executive 3 2 NIL
3 | 8hri 3 K. Mukherjee 28-04-2018 Independent 3 3 NIL
4 Bhri Gourav Periwal 27-12-2019 Non- Executive 3 0 NIL
* Ceased to be member wef 10.11.2022
(v)  Risk Management Committee
sl Name of Director/ L . Number of Meetings
No. | Member Member of Capacity (i.e. Executive/ of the Committee No. of shares
. Non-Execntive/ Chairman/ held in NBFC
Cm,lmm" Promoter nominee/ Held Attended
smee Independent)
1 Shri Ashok Bhandari 04-04-2022 MNon- Executive 4 4 NIL
(Chairman)
2 | Shri Ravi Goenka 04-04-2022 Independent 4 4 NIL
3 Shri Gourav Periwal® 04-04-2022 Non- Executive 4 2 NIL
4 Shri K. K. Thakur 10-11-2022 Manager & CFO 4 2 NIL

* Ceased to be member wef 10.11.2022

N\
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(vi) Finance and Assets Liability Supervisory Commuttee (ALCO)

8l Name of Director Number of Meetings
No. Mﬂﬂhf-‘l' of | Capacity (i.e. Executive/ of the Committee No. of shares
Committee | Ny Frecutive/ Chairman/ held in NBFC
simee . Held |Attended
Promoter nominee/
Independent)
1 | Shri Ashok Bhandari 10-11-2022 | Non- Executive 2 2 NIL
{Chairman)
2 | Shri Gourav Periwal 10-11-2022 | Non- Executive 2 2 NIL

(vit) Investment / Credit Commiitee

Sl Name of Director Number of Meetings
No. Mﬂﬂhf-‘l' of | Capacity (i.e. Executive/ of the Committee No. of shares
Committee | Noy Executive/ Chairman/ held in NBFC
Gl . Held [(Attended
Promoter nominee/
Independent)
1 | Shri Ashok Bhandari 10-11-2022 | Non- Executive 3 3 NIL
{Chairman)
2 | Shri Ravi Goenka 10-11-2022 | Independent 3 3 NIL

(vii1) Grievance Redressal Mechanism Committee

Sl Name of Director Number of Meetings
No. Mﬂﬂhf-‘l' of | Capacity (i.e. Executive/ of the Committee No. of shares
Committee | Ny Frecutive/ Chairman/ held in NBFC
smoe . Held |Attended
Promoter nominee/
Independent)
1 Shri Ravi Goenka 06-03-2023 | Independent- (Chairman) | 1 1 NIL
2 Shri 5 K. Mukherjee 06-03-2023 | Independent 1 1 NIL
3 Shri Gourav Periwal 06-03-2023 Non- Executive 1 1 NIL

(3) General Body Meetings

51 Type of Meeting Date and Special resolutions
No. {Annual/ Extra-Ordinary) Place passed
1 Annual General Meeting 20-09-2022, Kolkata NIL
. S
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(4)Details of non- compliance with requirements of Companies Act, 2013.
The Company has complied with all requisite requirements as per Companies Act, 2013.
(5)Details of Penalties and Strictures

No penalties and stricture were imposed either by Reserve Bank of India or any other statutory
authorities.

B)Breach of covenant

There were no instances of breach of covenant of loan availed during the year under review. No debt
securities were issued by the Company during the year.

C)Divergence in Assets Classification and Provisioning

RBI has not assessed or identified any additional provisioning requirement in the case of the Company
otherthan what has been provided for. Hence not applicable.

N
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Digvijay Finlease Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Digvijay Finlease Limited (“the
Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of changes in equity and Statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Ind AS prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2023, its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on the Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report but
does notinclude the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this otherinformation, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to reportin this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) and accounting principles generally accepted in India, specified under section 133 of
the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, asamended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and
maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
thatincludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

» Obtainanunderstanding ofinternal control relevant to the auditin order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we

N
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are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
eventsinamannerthatachievesfair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factorsin
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatementsin the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, and on
the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2.A. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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b) Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
itappears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of cash flow and changes in equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the

books of account.

d

—

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, asamended.

~—

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

e

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial control with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, asamended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions
of Section 197 read with Schedule Vto the Act.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Reportin accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

a) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements—Refer Note 32 to the financial statements;

b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

c¢) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d) (i) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

N
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(ii) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material misstatement.

e) Nodividend hasbeen declared or paid during the year by the Company.

f)  Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account
using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable
to the Company with effect from 1 April 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended 31 March
2023.

For S. Jaykishan
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 309005E

CA Vivek Newatia

Partner

Membership No. 062636

Dated: The 30th day of June, 2023.
Place: Kolkata

UDIN: 23062636BGYDTN6574
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Annexure -A

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our
report to the Members of Digvijay Finlease Limited of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

i)(a) Inrespect of Property, Plantand Equipment:
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of its Property, Plantand Equipment.

(b) Inour opinion property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management at
regularintervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification during the year.

(c) The title/lease deeds of immovable properties (which are included under the head 'Property, plant
and equipment') are held in the name of the company except in the following cases:

‘Whether
c ¢ Reason for
ross romoter
Description . Held in p' ’ . not being
Carrying value director or Period held .
of property . name of . . held in name
(in lakhs) their relative
of company
or employee
Frechold 435.75 Arham No 1 April 2016 Procedural
Land Securities (Appointed delay - held
Private date of merger) | in the name
Limited of erstwhile
amalgamating
company

(d) The company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant, and Equipment during the year.

(e) We have not come across any proceedings that have been initiated under Section 24(1) of the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 by the Initiating Officer (10) and/ or any
proceedings being pending against the company before the Initiating Officer/ Adjudicating Authority/
Appellate Tribunal/ High Court/ Supreme Court during any of the preceding financial years.

ii) (@) The Company is in the business of investing and financing activity and consequently, does not
hold any inventory. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the said Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of X 5 crore, in aggregate, at
any point of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assetsand hence, reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the orderis not applicable to the Company.
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iii)(a) Since the Company is engaged in non-banking financial activity, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a) of
the Order are not applicable toit.

(b) The investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the
grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided to the extent applicable
toitare not prejudicial to the Company'sinterest.

(c) Inrespect of loans and advances in the nature of loans (together referred to as “loan assets”), where
the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated, note 3.1 to the
financial statements explains the Company's accounting policy relating to impairment of financial
assets which includes loan assets. In accordance with that policy, loan asset with balance as at 31
March 2023 amounting to 1,950 lakhs was categorised as credit impaired (“Stage 3”). The Company
did not have any other loan asset where the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of
interest has been stipulated.

(d) The total amount overdue for more than ninety days in respect of loans and advances in the nature
of loans, as at 31 March, 2023 is X 1,950 lakhs. Reasonable steps are being taken by the Company for
therecovery ofthe principal and interest.

(e) Since the Company's principal business is non-banking financial activity, the provisions of clause
3(iii)(e) of the Order are not applicable toit.

(f) The Company has granted loans and advances in nature of loans repayable on demand or without

specifying any terms or period of repayment. The details of the same are as follows:
(X in Lakhs)

Particulars Other parties Promoters Related parties

Agpgregate amount of loans / advances
in nature of loans

- Repayable on demand (A) 225.00 360.00 None
-Agreement does not specify any

. N N N
terms of period of repayment (B) one one one

Percentage of loans/ advances in 38.46% 61.54% None

nature of loans to the total loans

iv) The company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantee or securities provided as applicable.

v) The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the
meaning of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act,
any other relevant provisions of the Act and the relevant rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, the
provisions stated in clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no order has been passed by the Company Law Board or the
National Company Law Tribunal or the Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal against
the Companyinthisregard.

N
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vi) The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013, for the Company. Accordingly, provision of clause 3(vi) of the order are not
applicable tothe company.

vii) (@) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income tax, Sales Tax, Wealth tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, duty
of Excise, Value Added Tax, GST, Cess and other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities to the
extent applicable to it. There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income tax, wealth tax,
service tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, duty of excise or cess which have remained
outstanding as at 31 March 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.
(b) We report that the following statutory dues have not been deposited with the appropriate
authority on account of dispute:-
Name of the Nature of Dues Amount (X in Period which Forum where
Statute Lakhs) the amount dispute is
relates to pending
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 9.67 | AY. 2006-07 Commissioner of
1961 Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 0.10 | AY.2017-18 Commissioner of
1961 Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 2275 | AY.2018-19 Commissioner of
1961 Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 73.06 | AY.2021-22 Commissioner of
1961 Income Tax
(Appeals)
viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income
in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the
year.
ix) (@) The Company did not have any loans or borrowings from any lender during the year. Accordingly,
clause 3(ix)(a) of the Orderis not applicable.
(b) The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or government authority.
(c) The Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.
. J
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(d) Onanoverall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds have been
raised during the year by the Company. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(d) of the Orderis not applicable.

(e) We report that the Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
clause 3(ix)(e) and (f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Orderis not applicable.

xi) (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view
of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the company or no fraud on the company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
company during the year.

xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii) The transactions with related parties are in compliance with the provisions of sections 177 and 188
of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required under Ind AS 24, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133
of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, asamended.

xiv) (a) The company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature
ofits business and internal audit of the company has been conducted as per scope of the audit.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the period under
audit.

xv) The Company has not entered into non cash transactions during the year, in terms of section 192 of
the Act, with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xv) are
not applicable to the company.

xvi) (a) The Company is required to obtain the registration under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 and the Company has obtained the requisite registration as a non-banking financial
institution under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,1934.
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(b) The company has obtained Certificate of Registration (CoR) from Reserve Bank of India for
conducting activities related to Non-Banking Financing activities.

(c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India.

(d) The Group has no CIC as part of the group. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not
applicable.

xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses during the current financial year and in the
immediately precedingfinancial year.

xviii) There has been no resignation of statutory auditors during the year and accordingly reporting
under clause 3 (xviii) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, the
auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as
on the date of the audit report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that ourreportingis based on the facts up to date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx)(a) The Company is not required to transfer any unspent amount pertaining to the year under report
to afund specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act, 2013 in compliance with second proviso to sub
section 5 of section 135 of the said Act.

(b) There is no amount which is remaining unspent under sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act
pursuant toany ongoing CSR project.

For S. Jaykishan
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 309005E

CA Vivek Newatia

Partner

Membership No. 062636

Dated: The 30th day of June, 2023.
Place: Kolkata

UDIN: 23062636BGYDTN6574
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Annexure B

(Referred to in paragraph 2A(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of
ourreportto the Members of Digvijay Finlease Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Digvijay
Finlease Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2023, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the “ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

N
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for ouraudit opinion on the Company'sinternal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For S. Jaykishan
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 309005E

CA Vivek Newatia

Partner

Membership No. 062636

Dated: The 30th day of June, 2023.
Place: Kolkata

UDIN: 23062636BGYDTN6574
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Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023
{All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars Note Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Financial assets
{a} Cash and cash equivalents 4 48.19 126.52
{b] Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 5 3.84 2,184.00
{c) Loans 6 189.98 1,743.00
{d) Investments 7 1,221,303.11 1,093,145.06
{e) Other financial assets B 54.90 126.64
TOTAL 1,221,600.02 1,097,325.22
Nan-financial assets
(&) Current tax assets (Net) 9 63.14 63.14
(b) Property, plant and equipment 10 519.20 519.20
{c) Other non-financial assets 11 0.44 1.31
TOTAL 582.78 583.65
TOTAL ASSETS 1,222,182.80 1,097,908.87

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
{a) Payables

| Trade payables 12

i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -

ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises 35.82 -
{b) Other financial liabilities 13 6.14 822
Nan-financial liabilities
{(a) Current tax liabilities (net) 14 40.76 39.38
{b) Provisions 15 18.92 15,27
{c) Deferred tax liability (net) 16 52,367.40 34,207.21
{d} Other non-financial liabilities 17 0.68 0.79
TOTAL 52,469.72 34,870.87
Equity
{a) Equity Share capital 18 1,325.94 1,325.94
(b} Other equity 19 1,168,387.14 1,061,712.06
TOTAL 1,169,713.08 1,063,038.00

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,222,182.80 1,097,908.87
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
In termss of our report attached For and an behalf of the Board af Directors
For $. Jaykishan
Chartered Accountants Gourav Periwal Sudip Kumar Mukherjee
Firm Registration No. 309005E Director Director
DIN: 08043886 DIN: 00029362
CA. Vivek Newatla
Partner
Membership No. 062636
Place : Kolkata Krishna Kumar Thakur Sumit Jain
Date: 30th June 2023 Manager & CFO Company Secretary
\ J
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Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All amounts in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note | 3 March 2023 31 March 2022
Rewenue from aperations
{a} Interest income 20 138.89 578.86
(b} Dividend Income 21 4,383.32 4,723.37
{c) Net gain on fair value changes 22 41.38 51B.55
Total revenue from operations 4,564.09 5,820.78
Other income 23 14.96 54.80
Total income 4,579.05 5,875.58
Expenses
{a} Employee benefits expense 24 58.27 50.35
(b} Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 10 0.00 0.01
(c) Other expenses 25 321.37 265.46
Total expenses 379.64 315.82
Profit before tax 4,199.41 E,559.76
Tax expense 26
{a} Current tax 1,120.00 1,858.25
Less:Tax charged in OC| - 480.13
1,120.00 1,378.12
(b} Deferred tax 12.84 275.82
Tax expense 1,132.84 1,653.94
Profit for the year (A) 3,066.57 3,905.82
Other comprehensive income
{a} tems that will not be reclassified to profit or lass
- Re-measurement (lose)/ gain an defined benefit plans (0.47) 0.12
Tax impact on above 0.12 (0.03)
- Changes in fair valuation of equity instruments 121,076.37 (215,069.55)
Tax impact on above {17,542.85) 24,087.31
{b} Iterns that will be reclassified to profit or loss
- Changes in fair valuation of bonds/ debt instruments 79.97 144,95
Tax Impact on above {4.62) 108.09
Qther comprehensive income for the year 103,608.52 (190,729.11)
Total comprehensive income for the year 106,675.09 (186,823.29)
Earnings per equity share (face value % 10 each}
Basic & Diluted (%) 27 2313 29.46
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financlal statements
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For $. Jaykishan
Chartered Accountants Gourav Periwal Sudip Kumar Mukherjee
Firm Registration No. 309005E Director Director
DIN: 08643886 DIN: 00029362
CA. Vivek Newatia
Partner
Membership No. 062636
Place : Kolkata Krishna Kumar Thakur Sumit Jain
Date: 30th June 2023 Manager & CFO Company Secretary
\. y,
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Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Allamounts in & lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

ki Year ended Year ended
Particulon 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
A. |Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax 4,199.41 5,559.76
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 0.00 0.0L
Imapirment loss recovery {7.52) (50.00)
Provision for standards assets {7.44) {0.05])
Provision for expectad credit loss 0.81 14.95
Net (gain)/lass an Fair value changes of investment (41.88) (518.55])
{56.03) {553.64)
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 4,143.38 5,006.12
Adjustments for
{Increase}/Decrease in other financial assets 7175 38.76
(increase}f/Decrease in loan 1,567.16 [1,700.20)
(Increase}/Decrease in other non- financial assets .87 1.28
Increase/[Decrease) in other financial liabilities {2.08) 222
Increase f{ Decrease) in pravision 3.19 1.90
Increase /{ Decrease) in trade payables 35.82 -
Increase /{ Decrease) in other non-financial liabilities {0.11}) 0.10
1,676.60 {1.656.63)
Cash generated from operatians 5,819.98 3,349.49
MNet income tax (paid)/refund (1,118.62) [1,844.89)
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 4,701.36 1,504.60
B. |Cash flow from investing activities
Sale proceeds from investments 32,260.23 13,209.88
Purchase of investments. (39,220.08) (30,479.83)
Investment in fixed depasit 2,180.16 15,856.8%
NET CASH FRON /(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) (4,779.69) {1,413.05)
C. |cash fla cl ctivities
NET CASH FRON /(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES {C)} - -
NET INCREASE/{DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) (78.23) 91.55
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 126.52 34.97
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 48.19 12652
Notes:
1) The above statement of cash flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out In Ind AS 7 - 'Statement of Cash
Flows’,

ii} Since the Company is an investrnent and finance company, purchase and sale of investments have been considered as part of
“Cash flow from investing activities” and interest earned (net) % 138.89 lakhs (Previous year £ 5782.86 lakhs) and dividend
earned of ¥ 4,383.32 lakhs (Previous year X 4,723.37 lakhs) have been considered as part of "Cash flow from operating
activities",

iii} Direct taxes paid is treated as arising from operating activities and is not bifurcated between investing and financing activities.

v} Components of cash and cash eguivalents are disclesed in note no. 4
The accompanying nates are an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our report attached For and an behalf of the Board of Directors
For $. Jaykishan
Chartered Accountants Gourav Periwal Sudip Kumar Mukherjee
Firm Registration No. 309005E Director Director
DiN: 08643886 DIN: 00029362
CA. Vivek Newatla
Partner
Membership No. 062636
Place : Kolkata Krishna Kumar Thakur Sumit Jain
Date: 30th June 2023 Manager & CFQ Company Secretary
. J
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2023

{All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
a. Equity share capital

Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,325.94 1,325.94
Changes in eguity share capital due to prior period errors - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 1,325.94 1,325.94
Changes in equity share capital during the current year - -
Balance at the end of the year 1,325.94 1,325.84
b. Other equity
Rusava b surphss tams of other comprehensive
income
Particulars P Total
Capital | Securites | Statutory | Genenal | Retained | Dotk Equlty
réseré premium reserve resérve farmings it idnmants
through OC1 | through OCI
| Balance as on O April 2021 313.08 2,177.08|  6484.24| 602500 17,430.28 205.00| 1,215,850.67 | 1,248,535.35
Profit/{loss) for the year - - - 3.505.82 3,505.82
Fairvahee sein/Bios) e he " . : . s :308|  (1s0982.24)|  (190,729.20)
year {net of tax)
Other Comprehenshive |ncomeinet I —
of tax)
Transfer from equity instrument
through OCI on realisation MASIED A5
Transfer to statutory reserve = - 78116 - {781.186) - - -
| Balance as on 31 March 2022 313.08 2,177.08 7,265.40 5,025.00 |  34,964.92 458.00 |  1,010,508.54 | 1,061,712.06
Frofit/(loss) for the year - - - - 3,066.57 - - 3,066.57
Falr Vel galty Jorss] dhring the 75.35 103,533.51 |  103,608.86
Year (net of tax)
Other Ccmprehenshlve |ne ome{neat [G.!S:l i i {035'
of tax)
Transfer from equity instrument
through OC! on reallsation (1,086.53] 1,086.53 -
Transfer to statutory reserve - - 613.31 = {613.31) - - -
Balanee as an 31 March 2023 313.08 2,177.08 7.878.71 6,025.00 | 3633130 53339| 1,11512858/ 1,168,387.14
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
In terms of our report attached. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ForS. Jaykishan
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 309005E
Gourav Periwal Sudip Kumar Mukherjee
Director Directar
DIN: 08643886 DIN: 00029362
CA. Vivek Newatia
Partner
Membership No. 062636
Place : Kolkata Krishna Kumar Thakur Sumit Jain
Date: 30th lune 2023 Manager & CFO Company Secretary
. J
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1 Corporate Information

Digvijay Finlease Limited (referred to as "The Company" or "DFL") is a public unlisted
company, limited by shares incorporated on 1st May, 1992 and domiciled in India. The Company is
carrying on business as a "Non-Banking Financial Company" (NBFC) registered with the Reserve
Bank of India. The Company is engaged mainly in investment in shares and securities and granting
ofloans and advances. The Company's registered office is at 21, Strand Road, Kolkata 700 001.

The financial statements of the Company as on 31 March 2023 were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 30th June 2023."

2 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

2.1 Statement of compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (referred to as "Ind AS") prescribed under section 133 read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, asamended from time to time.

2.2 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost
convention, except for certain financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period as explained in the accounting policies below.
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (X), and all values are rounded to the
nearest lacs, unless otherwise indicated.

3 Significant accounting policies
3.1 Financial instruments
(i) Classification

Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and
afinancial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets, other than equity, are classified into, Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit and loss account
(FVTPL) or at amortised cost. Financial assets that are equity instruments are classified as FVTPL
or FVOCI. Financial liabilities are classified as amortised cost category and FVTPL.

(ii) Business Model assessment and Solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) test:

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the business model and
results of SPPI test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how
groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This
assessmentincludes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including:
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- How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that
business model are evaluated and reported to the entity’s key management personnel

- The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets
held within that business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed

- How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the
compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows
collected)

- The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the
Company’s assessment.

If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the
Company’s original expectations, the Company does not change the classification of the
remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information when
assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

(iii) Initial recognition
The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their
contractual terms and the business model for managing the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in the Statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities, with the exception of loans, debt securities and
deposits are recognised on the trade date i.e. when a Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Loans, debt securities and deposits are recognised
when the funds are transferred to the customers account. Trade receivables are measured at the
transaction price.

(iv) Subsequent measurement

(a) Financial assets atamortised cost:

Financial assets having contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding and that are held
within a business model whose objective is to hold such assets in order to collect such contractual
cash flows are classified in this category. Subsequently these are measured at amortised cost
using effective interest method less any impairment losses.

N
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(b) Debt Instruments at FVOCI

Debt instruments that are measured at FVOCI have contractual terms that give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal
outstanding and that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. These instruments largely comprise
long-term investments made by the Company.FVOCI debt instruments are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes in fair value recognised in OCI.
Interest income and gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss in the same manner as for
financial assets measured at amortised cost. On derecognition, cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in OCl are reclassified from OCl to profit or loss.

(c) Equity Instruments at FVOCI

These include financial assets that are equity instruments as defined in IND AS 32
“Financial Instruments: Presentation” and are not held for trading and where the Company’s
management has elected to irrevocably designated the same as Equity instruments at FVOCI
upon initial recognition. Subsequently, these are measured at fair value and changes therein are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income, net of applicable income taxes.

Gainsand losses on these equity instruments are never recycled to profit or loss.

Dividends from these equity investments are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss when the right to receive the payment has been established.

(d) Fair value through Profit and loss account:

Financial assets are measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortised cost or at
FVOCI on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit or loss.

(v) Financial Liabilities and equity instruments:

(a) Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

(b) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of directissue costs.

(c) Other Financial Liabilities:
These are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate.
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(vi) Derecognition of Financial assets and Financial liabilities:

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expires or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

(vii) Impairment of financial assets:

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on a financial asset
that is at amortized cost or fair value through OCI. Loss allowance in respect of financial assets is
measured at an amount equal to life time expected credit losses and is calculated as the
difference between their carrying amount and the present value of the expected future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

(viii) Reclassification of Financial assets:

The Company does not re-classify its financial assets subsequent to their initial
recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances when the Company changes its business
model for managing such financial assets. The Company does not re-classify its financial liabilities.

3.2 Determination of fair value:
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
inan orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction
price (fair value of the consideration given or received). Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Company determines the fair value of financial instruments that are quoted in active markets
using the quoted bid prices (financial assets held) or quoted ask prices (financial liabilities held)
and using valuation techniques for other instruments. Valuation techniques include discounted
cash flow method and other valuation models.

33 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent comprise of cash at banks & on hand term deposits with
original maturity of less than three months, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in
values.

3.4 Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

PPE are stated at cost (including incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the
asset to its working condition for its intended use) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to
its working condition for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure related to PPE is capitalised
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the
Company and the cost of item can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed off asand whenincurred.
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Advances paid towards the acquisition of PPE, outstanding at each reporting date are
shown under other non-financial assets. The cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for
itsintended use at each reporting date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

Subsequent expenditure related to the asset are added to its carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset only if it increases the future benefits of the existing asset, beyond
its previously assessed standards of performance and cost can be measured reliably. Other repairs
and maintenance costs are expensed off asand whenincurred.

Property plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is recognised in other income expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year the
assetis derecognised.

3.5 Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided on written down value
method (WDV) to write down their residual values over their estimated useful life specified in
Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. The residual values, useful lives and methods of
depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by
changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in
accounting estimates.

3.6 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date to determine if there is any indication of
impairment, based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, then an impairment
review is undertaken and the recoverable amount s calculated as the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and the asset's value in use.

3.7 Employee Benefits Expenses

(i) Short Term Employee Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the
employees render the service. These benefits include performance incentive and compensated
absences, which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which
the employee renders the related service.

(ii) Defined contribution schemes

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the
Company pays specified monthly contributions to Provident Fund. The Company's contribution is
recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the
employeerenders therelated service.

N
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(iii) Gratuity

Liability with regard to long-term employee benefits is provided for on the basis of an
actuarial valuation at the Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gain / loss is recognised immediately in the
statement of other comprehensive income.

3.8 Taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

(i) Current Tax

The current tax is based on taxable profit for the year under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively
enacted atthe Balance Sheet date.

(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on all temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Company's financial statements except when the
deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither the accounting nor
taxable profits or loss at the time of transaction Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible temporary difference, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) is reviewed
at each reporting date and is adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
onanetbasis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when
the same relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in Equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax relating to such items are also recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income or directly in Equity respectively.
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3.9 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because
it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A
contingent liability also arises in extremely rare. cases where there is a liability that cannot be
recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent
liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the entity.

3.10 Earningspershare (EPS)
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

3.11 Cash-flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future
cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and
financing activities of the Company are segregated.

3.12 Leases
(i) Arrangements where the Company is the lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A
contract s, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a Right-of-use
Asset and a corresponding Lease Liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except
for leases with a term of twelve months or less ('short-term leases') and low value leases. For
these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognises the rent as an operating expense
in the Statement of Profitand Loss.
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Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before
the end of the lease term. Right-of-use Assets and Lease Liabilities includes these options when it
is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The Right-of-use Assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liabilities i.e. present value of future lease payments adjusted for any lease
payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less
any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. The lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rates.
Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related Right-of-use
asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option.

Right-of-use Assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

(ii) Arrangements where the Company s the lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

The lease rentals under such agreements are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss as perthe terms of the lease.

3.13 Use of estimates, judgements and adjustments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses, and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
results of operations during the reporting period end. Although these estimates are based upon
management's best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any
future periods affected.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed in the paragraphs that follow.

(i) Useful Economic Lives and Impairment of Other Assets
The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment (PPE) is based on a number of

N
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factors including the effects of obsolescence, usage of the asset and other economic factors (such
as known technological advances).

The Company reviews the useful life of PPE at the end of each reporting date and any
changes could affect the depreciation rates prospectively.

The Company also reviews its property, plant and equipment for possible impairment if
there are events or changes in circumstances that indicate that the carrying value of the assets
may not be recoverable. In assessing the property, plant and equipment for impairment, factors
leading to significant reduction in profits, such as the Company's business plans and changes in
regulatory environment are taken into consideration.

(ii) Contingencies and Commitments

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation, taxation
and other claims against the Company. Where an outflow of fundsis believed to be probableand a
reliable estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be made based on management's assessment
of specific circumstances of each dispute and relevant external advice, management provides for
its best estimate of the liability. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for
inthe financial statements.

Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal
proceedings, the Company does not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on the
Company's financial position or profitability.

(iii) Fair Value Measurements and Valuation Processes

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Information about the valuation techniques and
inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities are disclosed in the notes
tothe financial statements.

(iv) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets For Carried Forward Tax Losses & Unused Tax Credit

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised based on an assessment of the
probability of the Company's future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be
utilised. In addition significant judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal or
economic limits.

3.14 Recent Accounting Developments
(i) Ind AS 1 -Presentation of Financial Statements
The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies

rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together with
other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of
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primary users of general purpose financial statements. The Company does not expect this
amendment to have any significantimpactinits financial statements.

(ii) Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such
as leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of the
recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no
longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant
impactinits financial statements.

(iii) Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and
accounting estimates. The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with
a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”.
Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements
to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The Company does not expect
thisamendment to have any significantimpactinits financial statements.

N
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
ote d u ts At b
31 March2023 31 March 2022
Cash on hand 25.01 4.01
Balances with banks
a) in current accounts 23.18 122.51
43.19 126.52
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Flxed deposits with banks (with orlginal maturlty of more than thres months) 3.84 2,184.00
3.84 2,184.00
As at As at
Mt Lo 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
()
Loans repayable an demand, measured at amortised cost
Loans repayable an demand 2,140.74 3,700.00
Total {A) - Gross 2,140.74 3,700.00
Less: Impairment loss allowance (1,950.76} {1,957.00)
Total {A) - Net 189.98 1,743.00
(B)
Secured - -
Unsecured 2,140.74 3,700.00
Total {B) - Gross 214074 3,700.00
Less: Impairment loss allowancs (1,950.76} 4,357.00)
Total {B) - Net 189.98 1,743.00
L(=11)]
Loans in India
{I) Public sector - -
{ii} Private sector- Bodies corporate 2,140.74 3,700.00
{ili} Individual - -
Total {CHI}- Gross 214074 3,700.00
Less: Impairment loss allowance (1,950.76} (1,957.00)
Tatal {C){1} Net 189.98 1,743.00
{Cj{N)
Loans outs/de India
Tatal {C){11)= Net
Total [C)lI+1) 189.98 1,743.00
During the year, the Company had granted loans amounting to X 360.00 lakhs (previous year - NIL)
to promoters (as defined under the Companies Act 2013). However, the company has no
outstanding loans to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel and the related parties (as
defined under the Companies Act 2013) as at the balance sheet date.
. J
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Analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount by stages in relation to
loans and its corresponding impairment loss allowances is as follows :-

(All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
For the year ended 31 March 2023
Stage 1 Stage 3
Particulars Loans reycxyabie Impairment loss Luans repaysbin Impairment loss
on demand on demand
allowance allowance
(Gross) {Gross)
As at March 2022 1,750.00 7.00 1,850,00 1,950,00
New credit exposure during the year, net of
repayments {1,559.28) [6.24)
As at March 2023 190.74 0.76 1,950.00 1,950.00
For the year ended 31 March 2022
stage 1 Stage 3
Loans repayable Impairment loss Loans repeyable Impairment loss
on demand allowance on demand allowancs
Particulars {Gross) {Gross)
As at March 2021 7.00 - 2,000.00 2,000.00
New credit exposure during the year, net of 1,743.00
repayments 7.00 {50.00)} {50.00)
As at March 2022 1,750.00 7.00 1,950.00 1,950.00
The following disclosures is required pursuant to RBI circular dated March 13, 2020 - Circular No.RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.
109/22.10.106/2019-20
at Gross allowances
Gross carrying amount |(provisions) as Net earrying Provislon required as per
At casilfication as er RB1 Nonws EHT::::;OZS as per IND AS required under  |amount IRACP Norms
il IND AS 109
Perfarming Stage 1 190.74 0.76 189.98 0.76
|Non-peforming assets Stage 3 1.950.00 1,950.00 . 1.950.00 |
There is no difference between the provisioning requirements as per IND AS 109 and IRACP norms.
\ J
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Nots J: Investments (All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
At fair value
Through other
Investments Amortised cost comprehensive | Through profit and Total
income loss
(FvoCH)
As at 31 March 2023
1) Mutual funds {Quated) - . 1,393.69 1,393.69
i} Equity instruments
- Others [Quoted) - 1,162,206.66 - 1,162,206.66
- Others (Unguoted) - 56,356.33 - 56,356.38
iii) Preference shares
- Others (Unquoted) = 1345.38 = 1,246.38
Total (A} = 1,219,909.42 1,393.69 1,221,303.11
At fair value
Through other
Investments Amortised cost comprehensive | Through prefit and Total
income loss
(Fvoci)
As at 31 March 2022
i} Mutual funds (Quoted) - - 6,711.13 6,711.13
i} Equity instruments
- Others (Quoted) - 1,065,001.28 - 1,065,001.28
- Others (Unguoted) - 20,166.24 - 20,166.24
i) Preference shares
- Others (Unquoted) - 1.266.41 . 1,266.41
Total (A) - 1,086,433.93 6,711.13 1,093,145.06
cula As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(i) Investment outside India - -
(i} Investment in India 1,221,303.11 1,093,145.06
Total 1,221,303.11 1,093,145.06
7.1 The market value of investments is equal to the book value.
7.2. The Company has elected an irrevocable option to designate its investments in equity instruments
through FVOCI, as the said investments are not held for trading and company continues to invest for long
term and remain invested in leaders in sectors, which it believes to have potential to remain accretive over
thelongterm.
7.3. Of the total dividend recognised during the year from investment in equity share designated at FVOCI X
51.47 lakhs (Previous year X 10.24 lakhs) is relating to investment derecognised during the period and X
4,331.85 lakhs (previous year X 4,657.75 lakhs) pertains to investment held at the end of reporting period.
7.4. During the year, total cumulative gains/(losses) of (-) X 1,086.53 lakhs (Previous year X 14,359.88 lakhs)
on investment in equity shares designated at FVOCI have been transferred from/to retained earnings on
derecognition of related investments after adjusting for tax effect thereon. The fair value of investmentsin
equity shares designated at FVOCI derecognised during the year on the date of derecognition is X 15,992.28
lakhs (previousyearX11,522.11 lakhs).
7.5.The other disclosure regarding fair value and risk arising from financial instruments are explained in Note
No.33and 34.
. J
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7.6 Details of investments are as follows :-
(All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Mutual funds

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
; Face value
Particulars I Units Amount Units Amount
{% in lakhs) (% in lakhs)
At fair value through profit and loss
Quaoted
UTI Arbitrage Fund-Growth Plan 10 = = 21,5859,472.37 6,135.99
Kotak Equity Arbitrage Fund 10 - - 1,656,643.48 500.47
ICICI Prudential Floating Interest Fund - Growth e 842.64 3.36 22,136.22 74.67
100
UTI Money Market Fund - Regular Plan 53,306.73 1,390.33 - -
Sub Total 1,393.69 6,711.13
Equity instruments - others, fully paid up
Face value As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Particulars ; Amount . Amount
3] Units Units
{%in lakhs) {Tin lakhs)
At fair value through other comprehensive
income
Quoted
1. Automobiles and auto components
Basch Limited 10 9,569 1,853.51 9,569 1,381.62
Maruti Suzuki Limited 5 - - 26,400 1996.18
Schaeffler India Limited 2 56470 1,619.31 56,470 1,096.65
3.472.82 4,474.45
2. Banks
ICIC] Bank Limited 2 135,250 1,1B6.48 135,250 987.73
Axis Bank Limited 2 230,000 1,574.55 - -
3,161.03 987.73
3. Cement
Qrient Cement Limited 1 1,648,700 1,810.55 1,846,700 234328
Shree Cement Limitad 10 4,234,780 1,108959.72 4,234,780 1017,727.74
1,110,770.27 1,020,070.99
4. Chemcials
Foseco India Limited 10 1,200 26.39 14377 198.98
26.39 198,98
S.Electrical equipment
GE Power [ndia Limited 10 184,000 182.53 638,343 970.60
18253 Y]
. Finances, services and insurance
HDFC Limited 2 67,900 1,780.09 - -
HDFC Life nsurance Company Limited 10 - - 550,000 2,960.10
N.B.|. Industrial Finance Co. Limited 5 486,478 7.065.12 471,478 10,465.87
Poonawalla Fincarp Limited 2 228,000 666.90 223,000 619.82
REC Limited 10 220,000 253.99 - -
9,766.10 14,045.79
L J
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(All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Face value i Amount i Amount
® Units (%in lakhs} Units % in lakhs)
7. Fast maving consumer goods and
consumer durables
Asian Paints Limited 1 - - 30,150 928.60
Gillette India Limited 10 14,400 621.52 14,400 598.35
Godrej Consumer Products Limited 1 515,000 4,985,97 515,000 3,843.60
Hindustan Unilever Limited 1 83,181 2,129.72 83,181 1,704.09
ITC Limited 1 700,000 2,684.50 700,000 1,754.55
United Sprits Limited 2 257,900 1,950.50 151,900 1,349.40
Whirlpoo! of India Limited 10 79,522 1,045.75 79,522 1,250.76
| Nestle India Limited 10 7,122 1,403.35 - -
Procter & Gamble Hygiene & Healthcare
| Limited 10 6,603 880,82 5,603 951,86
Tata Coffee Limited 1 143,000 294.37 - -
15,996.50 12,486.21
8. Pharmaceuticals
Ffizer Limited 10 25,850 896.26 25,850 1,124.00
Laurus Labs Limited 2 138,000 404.27 100,000 590.10
1,300.53 1,714.10
9. Information technology
|Infosys Limited 5 521,160 7,441.90 232,410 443171
Oracle Financial Services Software Limited 5 23,200 757.19 23,200 832.36
8,199.09 5,264.07
10. Telecommunications
Tejas Networks Limited 10 451,100 2,678.07 461,100 1,967.74
2,678.07 1,967.74
11. Iron and steel
Shyam Metalics & Energy Limited 10 204,950 538.71 - -
538.71 -
12. Olls & natural resources
| Reliance Industries Limited 10 36,500 850.83 - -
850.83 -
13, Agricultural c lal & construction
vehicle
Escorts Kubota Limited 10 55,796 1,055.13 - -
1,055.13 -
14, Healthcare
|Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited 5 31,000 1,336.38 - -
1,336.38 -
15. Diversified
3M India Limited 10 7,880 1,809.55 7,880 1552.15
1,809.55 1,552.15
16. Packaging
EPL Limited 2 655,200 1,062.73 655,200 1,268.47
1,062.73 1,268.47
Sub Total ) - | 11e220686| |  1,065001.28
\ J
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(All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Equity instruments - athers, fully paid up

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Face value
Particulars m Unks Amount Units Amount
{% in lakhs) (% in lakhs)
Ungquoted
Alfa Bulldhome Private Limited 10 2,600 34.45 2,600 30.89
Agua infra Projects Limited 10 820,185 5630.42 820,185 700.93
Asish Creations Private Limited 10 217,000 37,064.33 217,000 7,898.86
Cast Solutions Private Limited® 10 1 0.00 1 0.00
Cern Logistics Private Limited * 10 1 0.00 1 0.00
Didu Investments Private Limited 10 1,667 363.45 1,667 279.86
Karmayog Properties Private Limited 10 1,559,000 1,646.56 1,555,000 1,672.96
Mewa Investments Private Limited 10 15,000 4,134.36 15,000 3,253.20
New Central Jute Mills Co. Limited® 10 9 0.00 9 0.00
Ragini Finance Private Limited** 10 29,000 7.846.02 29,000 6,227.95
Ramgopal Holdings Private Limited 10 223,750 80.34 223,750 78.20
Ragini Properties Private Limited 10 79,600 817 79,600 233
SCL Energy Private Limited 10 100 0.01 100 0.01
shrea Cement Marketing Limited 10 5,000 0.97 5,000 0.97
shreecap Holdings Private Limited 10 7,000 0.86 7,000 0.54
Shree Cement East Bengal Foundation Limited 10 1,000 0.01 1,000 0.01
Suryadewata Properties Private Limited 10 121,800 142.51 5,800 6.94
The Kamila Co Limited 10 25,000 6.54 25,000 6.29
Ashtech Buildpro India Private Limited 10 1,625,771 1,089.27 - -
Sub Total 53,057.25 20,166.24
*Amount below rounding off norms
**Private (imited w.e.f 01-02-2022
Equity instruments - athers, partly paid up
Face value As at 31 March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Particulars =) Units Amount Uniits Amount
{in lakhs) [T in lakhs)
Unquoted
Agua Infra Projects Limited (Partly paid) (2 4.00
poi g 10 10,090,915 3,146.75 -
Alfa Builchome Private Limited [Partly paid) (%
5.00 paid up) 10 23,000 152.38 -
Sub Total 3,299.13
Preference shares - athers, fully pald up
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Face value
Particulars ®) Uik Amaunt i Amaunt
{% in lakhs) {% in lakhs)
At fair value through othar comprehensive
Income
Unguoted
9% Cast Solutions Private Limited - MCNCRP 100 70,000 70.00 70,000 70.00
9% CEM Logistics Private Limited - MNCNCRP 100 530,000 530.00 530,000 530.00
5% Tanushree Logistics Private Limited -
NCHNCRP 100 165,000 746.38 155,000 665.41
Sub Tatal 1,346.38 1,266.41
Total Investmants 1 303.11 1,093,145.06
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Note 8:-Other financial assets

Unsecured
considered good

Application money paid towards securities
Interest accrued an bank deposits

Interest accrued on loans given
Less: Provision for expected credit loss

Security deposits
Advance to staff

considered doubtful
Interest accrued on loan
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables

Note 9:-Current tax assets

Advance tax {net of provision of Rs.898.10
lakhs) (31-03-2022-Rs. 898.10 lakhs)

(All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

N

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
37.00 E
0.05 10.14
12.17 108.55
(0.05) (0.44)
12.12 109.11
3:19 3.18
2.54 4.21
- 7.52
- (7.52)
54.90 126.64
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
63.14 63.14
63.14 63.14
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Note 10: Praperty, plant and equipment (All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars FresholdLand | Buldieg | Fumiureand | Dataprocemsing Total
fintures eguipments
Gross Block (Deemed Cost)
As at 31 March 2021 515.44 22.05 0.07 0.21 537.77
Additions - - - - -
Sale/Deduction - - - - -
As at 31 March 2022 515.44 22.05 0.07 0.21 53777
Additions - - - - -
Sale/Deduction - - - - -
As at 31 March 2023 515.44 22.05 0.07 0.21 537.77
Accumulated depreciation
As at 31 March 2021 - 18.40 001 0.15 18.56
For the year® - = 0.00 0.01 0.01
Adjustment - - -
As at 31 March 2022 - 18.40 0.01 0.16 18.57
For the year® - - 0.00 - 0.00
Adjustment - - - - -
As at 31 March 2023 - 18.40 0.01 0.16 18.57
Net Baok Value
As at 31 March 2023 515.44 3.65 0.06 0.05 519.20
As at 31 March 2022 515.44 3.65 0.06 0.05 519.20
*Amount below rounding off norms
Details of title deeds of immovable property not held in the name of the Company:
Relevant ine item in the balance sheet Property, plant and squipment
'Whether litle deed
holder isa
promaoter director
or relative of Reason for not belng
Gross carrying | Title deeds held in the Property held since
Description of item of property el R ptnmm:lf which date held in the name of the
directoror campany
employes of
promoter/
director
R 1 April 2016 Pracedural delay - held in
Freehold Land 43s,7g | Aham Securties Private No {Anpointed date for| the name of erstwhile
Limited S
the merger] amalgs mating company
Asat As at
Note 11:-Other non-financial assets
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Advance against expanses 0.10 0.25
Balances f depasits with government autharities 0.34 1.06
0.44 131
L J
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(All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Asat Asat
Note 12:- Trade Payahles 34 March 2023 31 March 2022
i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -
ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterpr 35.82
35.82
* In respect of shares purchase during the year.
Note 12 fa) Ageing Schedule for Trade Payables as at 31 March, 2023 - due for payment
Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years Mare than 3 years
{i) Undisputed - MSME - - - N
{ii} Undisputed - Others 35.82 - -
{iii) Disputed - MSME : - «
(iv) Disputed - Others - - -
Note 12 {b) Ageing Schedule for Trade Payables as at 31 March, 2022 - due for payment
particulars Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than 3 years
(i) Undisputed - MSIME - - - -
(i} Undisputed - Others - - -
{iii) Disputed - MSME - - -
(iv) Disputed - Others - 5 =
Nate 12 {c) Disclosure with regard to dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises
(i) The Ministry of micro, small and medium enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends
that the micra and small enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memeorandum
Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum in accordance with the ‘Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act,
2006 {the Act’). Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises has been made in the financial
statements based on the Information received and available with the Company.
{ii} Based on the information [ documents available with the company, no interest provisions / payments has to be made by the
Company to micro enterprises and small enterprises creditors and thus, no related disclosures 25 required under Section 22 of the
Micre, Small and Medium Enterprisas Development Act, 2006 are made in these accounts,
As at As at
Note 13:-Other financial liabilities
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Employee benefits payable 2.82 -
Other payables - For expenses 3.32 8.22
6.14 8.22
Note 14:-Current tax liabilities Asat Asat
: 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for income tax (net of advance tax of £3,529.24 |akhs)
{31-03-2022-% 2,410.62 lakhs) 40.76 39.38
40.76 39.38
\ J
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(All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
ote 15:-Pravisions Aot A
- 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provisian far employee benefits:
a) Gratuity 13.27 10.73
b) Leave salary 5.65 4.54
18.92 15.27
Provision f Pravision for
Asat 1st April 2021 411 932
Provision utilised - -
Provision created / (reversed) 0.43 1.41
Balance as at 31 March 2022 4.54 10.73
Provision utilised - -
Provision created / (reversed) 1.11 254
Balance as at 31 March 2023 5.65 13.27
As at Asat
:-
Note 16:-Deferred tax {assets)/liabilities {net} 31 March 31 March 2022
Deferred tax llabilities
- On fair value gain of imvestments (through other comprehensive income) 53,069.23 35,288.98
- On fair value gain of investments (through profit or loss} 0.83 16.67
53,070.06 35,305.65
Deferred tax assets
- Property, plant and equipment 0.05 0.06
- Capital Loss to be carried forward 206.87 -
- Provision for gratuity 334 2.70
- Provision for leave salary 1.42 1.14
- Provision for expected credit loss 490,98 494,54
702.66 498.44
Deferred tax (assets)/ liabilities (net} 52,367.40 34,807.21
Asat As at
Note 17:-Oth: -fil ial liabilitie:
ernon-tinancialfaniites 31March2023 31 March 2022
Statutory dues 0.68 0.79
0.68 0.79
. J
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(All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Asat Asat
Note 18: Equlty share caphial 31March 2023 31 March 2022
Authorised:
2,00,00,000 Equity Shares of % 10 each 2.000.00 2000.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid:
1,32,59,420 Equity Shares of % 10 each 1,325.94 1315.94
1,325.94 1,325.94
18.1 Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 10 per share. Each holder of equity
share is entitled to one vote per share. Dividend, if any, proposed by the board of directors is subject to
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting. In the event of liquidation of the
company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to the remaining assets of the company after
distribution of all preferential amountsin proportion to the number of equity shares held by them.
18.2 Recanciliation of the number and amount of equity shares
Particulars In Number e
S (% in lakhs)
As at 01 April 2021 13,259,420 1,325.94
Add: Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2022 13,259,420 1,325.94
Add: Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2023 13,259,420 1,325.94
18.3 The Company is a non-banking finance company, the objective of the Company is to invest in long term
investments and granting of loans to ensure sustainable growth. The Company’s objective is to maintain
appropriate levels of capital to support its business strategy taking into account the regulatory, economic
and commercial environment.
18.4 Details of shareholders holding mare than 5% equity shares In the campany
e As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No. of Shares held % holding No. of Shares held % halding
Asich Creations Private Limited 909,599 6.86% 909,599 6.86%
Didu |nvestments Private Limited 720,620 5.13% 720,620 5.43%
Mannakrishna Investments Private Limited 1,269,296 957% 1,269,296 9.57%
Mewa Investments Private Limited 1,113,885 8.40% 1,101,890 8.31%
shree Capital Services Limited 3,880,759 29.27% 3,880,759 29.27%
The Didwana investment Co Limited 673,760 5.08% 673,760 5.08%
The Venktesh Co Private Limited * 821,521 6.20% 821,521 6.20%
Rajkamal Devi Bangur 1,961,332 14.79% 1,961,332 14.79%
* Private Limited w.e.f 15.02.2022
. J
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18.5 Shares held by promoters as at 31 March 2023 :- (All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Shareholding at the end of the year| Shareholding at the end of the year| - cho"8®
Promoter name [As on 31/Mar/2022] [As on 31/Mar/2023] d“:::rﬂ'e
No. of Shares | % of total shares| No. of Shares  |% of total shares
Asish Creations Private Limited 909,599 6.86 909,599 6.86 -
Didu Investments Private Limited 720,620 5.43 720,620 5.43 -
Hari Mohan Bangur 2 0.00 2 0.00 -
|In¢a Paint & Commercial Co. Limited 1 0.00 1 0.00 -
[karmayog Properties Private Limited 1 0.00 1 0.00 -
Khemka Properties Private Limited 1 0.00 1 0.00 -
Mannalrishna Investments Private Limited 1,269,296 9,57 1,269,296 Q.57 -
Newa Investments Private Limited 1,101,890 8,31 1,113,885 240 0.09
Prashant Bangur 282,642 2.13 282,642 2.13 -
Ragini Finance Private Limited ** 375,275 2.83 375,275 2.83 -
[Rajesh vanijya Private Limited 84,001 0.63 84,001 0.63 -
|Ra]hma| Devi Bangur 1,961,332 14.79 1,961,332 14.79 -
[Ramgopal Holdings Private Limited 1 0.00 1 0.00 -
Ranu Bangur 134,801 1.02 134,201 1.02 -
Scl Energy Private Limited 1 0.00 1 0.00 -
Shree Capital 5ervices Limited 3,880,759 29.27 3,880,752 29,27 -
Shreecap Holdings Private Limited 1 0.00 1 0.00 -
Suryadewata Properties Private Limited 1 0.00 1 0.00 -
The Didwana Investment Co, Limited 673,760 5.08 673,760 5.08 -
The Venktesh Co. Private Limited *** 821,521 6.20 821,521 6.20 -
Total 12,215,505 92.13] 12,227,500 92.22 0.09
k held by p as at 31 March 2022:-
% change
Promoter name Shareholding at the end of the year| Shareholding at the end of the year during the
[As on 31/Mar/2021] [As on 31/Mar/2022] year
No. of Shares | % of total shares| No. of shares | % of total shares
Asish Creations Private Limited 909,599 6.86 909,599 6.86 =
Didu Investments Private Limited 720,620 5.43 720,620 5.43 -
Hari Mohan Bangur 2 0.00] 2 0.00 -
|Incia Paint & Commercial Co. Limited 1 0.00 1 0.00 -
|Karma'.rog Properties Private Limited 1 0.00] 1 0.00 -
Khemka Properties Private Limited 1 0.00] 1 0.00 -
Mannakrishna |nvestments Private Limited 1,264,991 9.54 1,269,296 9.57 0.03
Mewa Investments Private Limited 1,101,890 8.31 1,101,890 831 -
Prashant Bangur 282,642 213 282,642 213 -
Ragini Finance Private Limited** 375,275 283 375,275 2.83 -
|Ra]esh Vanijya Private Limited 24,001 0.63 284,001 0.63 -
Rajkamal Devi Bangur 1,961,332 14.79| 1,961,332 14.79 -
Ramgopal Holdings Private Limited 1 0.00 1 0.00 -
Ranu Bangur 134,801 1.02 134,801 1.02 -
Scl Energy Private Limited 1 0,00 1 0,00 -
Shree Capital Services Limited 3,880,759 29.27| 3,880,759 29.27 -
Shreecap Holdings Private Limited 1 0.00] 1 0.00 -
Suryadewata Properties Private Limited 1 0.00 1 0.00 -
The Didwana Investment Co. Limited 673,760 5.08 673,760 5.08 -
The Venktesh Co. Private Limited *** 821,521 6.20 821,521 6.20 -
Shreeman Investments Private Ltd.* 1 0.00] - - (0.00)
Total 12,211,201 92.09 12,215,505 92.13 0.03
* Cease to exist as promoter w.e.f. F.Y. 2021-22
** private Limited w.e.f 01.02.2022
&% private Limited w.e.f 15.02.2022
\ J
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(All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
As at As at

Note 13: Uther equity
Note 19: Other equit 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Reserves and Surplus

Capital reserve
Balance at the beginning and end of the year 313.08 313.08

Securities premium

Balance at the beginning and end of the year 2,177.08 2,177.08
Statutory reserve

Opening balance 7,265.40 6,484.24
Add: Transfer from retained earnings 613.31 781.16
Closing balance 7,878.71 7,265.40

General reserve
Balance at the beginning and end of the year 6,025.00 6,025.00

Retained earnings

Opening balance 34,964.92 17,480.28
Add: Profit for the year 3,066.57 3,905.82
Add: Transfer (to)/from equity instrument through OCI on realisation (1,086.53) 14,359,89
Less: Transfer to statutory reserve (613.31) (781.16)
Add:Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (0.35) 0.09
Closing balance 36,331.30 34,964.92

Debt instruments through OCI

Opening balance 458.04 205.00
Add:- Fair value gain/(loss) during the Year (net of tax) 75.35 253.04
Closing balance 533.39 458.04

Equity instruments through OCI

Opening balance 1,010,508.54 1,215,850.67
Add:- Fair value gain/(loss) during the year (net of tax) 103,533.51 (190,982.24)
Less:Transfer (to}/from retained earnings on realization 1,086.53 (14,359.89)
Closing balance 1,115,128.58 1,010,508.54

TOTAL 1,168,387.14 1,061,712.06

Capital reserve
This reserve represents the difference between value of the net assets transferred, consideration received
for such assets in excess of orginal cost and excess value received in amalgamation.

Securities premium
This reserve represents the premium on issue of shares and can be utilized in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013.
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(All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Statutory Reserve
Statutory Reserve represents the Reserve Fund created under Section 45 IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly an amount representing 20% of Profit for the period is transferred to the fund for the year.
Generalreserve
General reserve is created from time to time by way of transfer of profits from retained earnings for
appropriation purposes. General reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another
andis notanitem of other comprehensive income.
Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfer to general reserves,
dividends and other distributions made to the shareholders.
Debt instruments through other comprehensive income
This reserve represents the cumulative gains (net of losses) arising on the revaluation of debt instruments
measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income, net of tax. The amount is transferred from this
reserve to the statement of profit and loss when the debt instrument is derecognised.
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income
This represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of equity instruments measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income, net of tax, under an irrevocable option, net of amount
reclassified to retained earnings when such assets are disposed off, if any.
Year ended Year ended
Note 20:- Interest income
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
On financial assets measured at amortised cost
Interest on loans 135.76 121.72
Interest on deposits with banks 3.13 457.14
138.39 578.86
Year ended Year ended
Nate 21:- Dividend income
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Dividend income from:
On financial assets measured at FVTOCI
a) Preference shares - 55.38
b) Equity shares 4,383.32 4,667.99
4,383.32 4,723.37
. J
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Note 22:- Net gain on fair value change

Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments
at fair value through profit or loss
Gain/(loss) on sale of debt instrument at FVTOCI

Total net gain/(loss) on fair value changes

Fair value changes

Realised

Unrealised

Total net gain/(loss) on fair value changes

Note 23:- Other income

Provision for standard assets written back

Reversal of provision for impairment on financial assets
Interest on IT refund

Miscellaneous income*

*Amount below rounding off norms

Salaries and allowance
Staff welfare expenses
Gratuity

Leave salary

(All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
41.88 101.56
- 416.99
41.88 518.55
135.55 432.17
(93.67) 86.39
41.88 518.55
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
7.44 0.05
7.52 50.00
- 474
0.00 0.01
14.96 54.8B0
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
51.68 46,07
3.40 2.32
2.08 1.53
1.11 0.43
58.27 50.35

N
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(All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Year Year ended

Note 25:- Other expenses ended 31 March 2022

Advertisement and publicity 0.03 0.11
Communication cost 4.07 5.86
CSR expenditure [Refer note 25.1] 36.65 54.60
Custodian fees 0.53 0.53
Depository charges 6.77 0.14
Directors meeting fees 0.97 1.07
Donations 200.00 125.00
Filing fees 0.22 0.43
Goods & services tax 0.97 1.36
Auditor's fees and expenses [Refer note-25.2] 1.46 1.14
Printing and stationery 5.22 4.50
Professional and legal charges 6.57 10.33
Rent, rates, taxes and energy costs 2.46 2.24
Premature charges 4.34 -
Repairs and maintenance - others 8.44 6.19
Securities transaction tax 40.27 35.30
Travelling and conveyance 0.75 1.43
Provision for expected credit loss 0.81 14.95
Miscellaneous expenses 0.84 0.28
321.37 265.46

Note 25.1-Details of CSR expenditure:

Particulars Year ended Yaar anded
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company duringthe Year 36.63 54.57
{b) Amount spent during the year 36.65 5460

(c) Shertfall at the end of the year
{d) total of the previous year shortfall
(&) reason for shortfall

Contribution

Rural devel nt toward
(f) nature of CSR activities i E_ il a_ i
projects promotion of
sports
(g) detalls of related party transactions, e.g., contributlon to a trust controlled by the
company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard
(h) where a provision is made with respect te a liability incurred by entering into contractual
obligation, the movements in the provision during the year shall be shown separately. -
\. J
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Note 25.2-Fayment to auditor (All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
i Year ended Yearended

Particulars 31March2023  31March 2022
For statutany audit .00 1.00
For lax audit 0.10 0.10
For other services 0.36 0.04
1.46 1.14
" - Ta Year ended Year ended
* 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Amounts recognised in profit and lass
Current tax 1,120.00 1.369.87
Income tax ralating to earllier years - 8.25
Deferred tax_ charge/{credit) relating to origination and reversal of 12.84 175,82
temperary differences
1,132,854 1,653.94
Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
Current tax (charged)/cradit
Equity instruments through other comprahensive Income (480.13)
Deferved tax relating to origination and reversal of temparary
ditferences (charged)/credit
Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans 0.12 [0.03)
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income (17.542.85) 24,567.44
Debt instruments through other comprehensive Income {4.62) 108.09
{17,547.35) 24,195.37
Recanciliation of effective tax rate
The income tax expense for the year can be
reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Profit before tax 4,199.41 5,559,76
Tex Rate® 25.17 2517
Income tax expense calculated at the effective rate 1,056.91 1,399.28
Expenses disallowed £9.72 54.09
MAT credit written off 748,82
Incorme tax relating to earlier years - 8.25
Income chargeable to tax at differential rates (0.47) {57.24)
Deferred tax recognised during the year on Impairment - (494.54)
Other adjustments G6.67 4.72)
Tan expenses 1,132.84 1,653.94
*Company opted for reduced corporate tax rate of 25.17% as per section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act,
1961 during the year ended 31 March 2022 and accordingly MAT credit of X 748.82 lakhs has been written off
during the year ended 31 March 2022.
. J

67



31ST ANNUAL REPORT

DIGVIJAY FINLEASE LIMITED

CIN No. U67120WB2001PLC093899

e A
(All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
26.2 Movement in deferred tax liabilities for year ended 31 March 2023:
Particulars et St el m| c:ﬂ::: v s
01 April 2022 | Profit or Loss AP 31 March 2023
Income
Deferred tax liabilities for taxable tempaorary differences on:
On fair value gain of investment (FYTOCI) 35,288.98 . 17,780.25 53,069.23
On Fair value gain of investment (FYTPL) 16.67 (15.84) - 0.83
Deferred tax liabilities 35,305.65 (15.84) 17,780.25 53,070.06
Movement in deferred tax asset for year ended 31 March 2023:
h
Pairtteutire As at Statement aof — ?eh:lsfve As at
01 April 2022 | Profit ar Loss P 31 March 2023
Income
Deferred tax assets for taxable temporary differences on:
Propeity, plant and equipment 0.06 (0.01}) - 0.05
Provision for grautity 2.70 0.52 0.12 3.34
Provision for leave salary L14 0.28 - L42
On fair value gain of investment (FVTPL) - - - -
Provision for expected credit loss/impairment 494.54 (3.56), - 490,98
MAT credit - - -
Loss to be carried forward
(25.91) 232.78 206.87
Deferred tax assets 458.45 (28.68) 232.90 702.66
Met deferred tax habilities/(assets) 34 B07.21 12.84 17,547.35 52,367.40
26.2 Movement in deferred tax liabilities for year ended 31 March 2022:
Qath
Particulars Asat Statement of com re-h:rnsm As at
01 April 2021 | Profit or Loss 3 31 March 2022
Income
Deferred tax liabilities for taxable temporary differences on:
On fair value gain of investment (FWTOCI) 59,964.48 - (24,675.50) 35,788.98
On fair value gain of investment {FVTPL) - 16.67 - 16.67
Deferred tax liabilities 59,964.48 16,67 (24,675.50} 35,305.65
Movement in deferred tax asset for year ended 31 March 2022:
Particulars Asat Statement of - ?te:;lsﬁve Asat
01 April 2021 | ProfitorLoss | 31 March 2022
Incorme
Deferred tax assets for taxable temporary differences on:
Froperty, plant and equipment 0.07 (0.01) = 0.06
Provision for grautity 271 0.02 (0.03) 2.70
Provision far leave salary 1.20 (0.05)] - 1.14
On fair value gain of investment (FVTPL) 4.82 (4.82) - -
Provision for expected credit lass/inipairment - 494,54 - 494,54
MAT credit 748.82 {748.82) -
Deferred tax assets 757.62 (259.14) {0.03} 498.44
Met deferred tax liabilities/ (assets) 59,206.86 275.81 (24,675.47) 34,807.21
\. y,
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Note 27:- Earnings per share
Year ended Year ended
Particul
Farticulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Net profit after tax as per statement of profit and loss 3,066.57 3,905.82
Weighted ber of equity sh dasd inat
eighte a:werage-num r of equity shares used as denominator 13,759,420 13,259.420
for calculating Basic EPS
Total weighted fequi
otal weighte .averag‘e number o equrt_y 13,259,420 13,259,420
shares used as denominator for calculating
Basic earnings per share (%) 23.13 29.46
Diluted earnings per share (%) 23.13 29.46
Face value per equity share (%) 10.00 10.00
Note 28:- Segment reporting
The Company has only one line of business i.e. Non Banking Financial activities. There are no separate
reportable segments as per Ind AS 108.
Note 29:- Employee benefits
(a) Defined benefit plans:
Contribution to defined benefit plans, recognised as an expense in profit and loss statement for the year are
asunder:
y Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Gratuity - Net defined benefit obligation 2.08 1.53
2.08 1.53
Defined benefit plan
The employee gratuity scheme of the company is unfunded. The present value of obligation is determined
based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method as on 31st March 2023, which
recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and
measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The company's gratuity expense is recognized
under the head - "Gratuity" in note 24.
Movement of defined benefit obligation
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over
theyearare as follows:
paiiidin Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of the year 10.73 9.32
Current service cost 1.31 Q.85
Interest cost 0.77 0.68
Benefits paid - -
Actuarial [gain)/loss 0.46 (0.12)
Defined benefit abligation at end of the year 13.27 10.73
. J
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Liability recognised in the balance sheet

Present value of defined benefit obligation 13.27 10.73
Amount recognised as liability In balance sheet 13.27 10.73
Expenses recognised during the year (Under the head

R e UE it Rerer note no. 24
Year endad Year ended
recognised in d loss statement
Ep pacrignd W et men 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current service cost 1.31 0.85
Past service cost (vested) = -
Net intarast cost 0.77 0.68
Total amount 2.08 153
Year ended Year ended

Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income 31 March 2023 31 Mainch 2002
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations due to change in financial assumption 0.05 {3.92)
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations due to change in demographic assumption (0.03) -
Actuarizl (gain)/loss on obligations due to unexpected experience 0.44 3.80
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 0.46 (0.12)
Net Cost 2.54 141
Note: Includes benefit payable to key managerial persen not

seperately reported in acturial report.

Actuarial assumptions

Discount rate (per annum) 7.18% 7.24%
Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) 6.00% 6.00%
Retirement age 60 60
Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set in accordance with

the published rates under Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Uktimate,

. J
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Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changesin the weighted principal assumption is:

Increase by Decrease by
Sensitivity analysis Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2023

Discount rate (-/+ 0.5%) 12.87 13.70
Salary growth {-/+ 0.5%) 13.70 12.86
Attrition rate (-/+ 10%) 13.27 13.27
Mortality rate (-/+ 10%) 13.27 13.27

Increase by Decrease by
Sensitivity analysis Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2022

Discount rate (-/+ 0.5%) 10.38 1.1
Salary growth (-/+ 0.5%) 11.11 10.37
Attrition rate {-/+ 10%) 10.73 10.73
Mortality rate (-/+ 10%) 10.73 10.73

Maturity profile

Year Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

1 0.85 0.10
2 0.66 0.62
3 0.15 0.48
4 0.17 0.13
5 0.18 0.15
6to 10 14.48 1.34
More than 10 years 5.44 3.44

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market.
The discounting rate is considered based on market yield on government bonds having currency and terms
consistent with the currency in terms of the post employment benefit obligations.
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1} Particulars of relationship Names of related parties Designation

Ashok Bhandari Mon Executive Director
Rawi Goanka Independent Director
Sudip Kumar Mukherjee Independent Director
Gourav Periwal Mon Executive Director
Key mangerial personnel Krishna Kumar Thakur Manager & CFO
Rakesh Rosan Dalmia
(Ceased w.e.f.21.02.22) Company Secretary
Sumit Jain
(Appoirted w.e.f. 21.02.22) Company Secretary
Enterprise having significant influence aver
P . Shree Capital Services Limited
the Company
11) Disclosures of transactions between the companies and related parties with status of outstanding closing
balances:
Year ended Year ended
Rerdeuler 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(1) Particulars of transactions with related parties
{Key managerial personnel)
A) Key Managerial Persannel
1} Remuneration of key managerial personnel®
Krishna Kumar Thakur
Short term employee benefits 19.86 18.52
Rakesh Rosan Dalmia
short term employee benefits 117
Sumft Jain
Short term emplovee benefits 8,79 0.58
1 Advances
Paid - 150
Received back 1.20 1.00
1) Directors sitting fees
Ashok Bhandari 0.29 0.31
Ravl Goenka 0.28 0.27
Sudip Kumar Mukherjee 0.31 032
Gourav Periwal 0.09 0.17
B) Enterprise having significant Influence over
the company
Shree Capital Services Limited
Rent Paid 0.28 0.28
1) Outstanding balance at the end of year {Key managerlal persannel)
Closing balance of advances 0,30 150
Maximum balance of advance during the year 1.50 1.50
* Post employment benefit details are not seperately disclosed in actuarial report for the year (Refer note: 29)
\ J
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Note 31: Di ré of Rati
Ratios Formula Current period | Previous pericd % variance Reason for variance
Tier | plug
Tier [ capital /
risk- . : =
#) Capital o risk-welghted gssets ratio (CRAR) | oo 102.87% 118.62%] (13,283 |NA
assets
Tier | capital /
b} Tier | CRAR Risk weighted 102.87%, 118.62% {13.28)% |MA
assets

Tier Il capital /
c) Tier | CRAR Risk weighted - - - MA
assets

Highly liquid assels

. ' / Liquid asset deployed in
dj L dit & 124.83% 1436.72% 91.31)%
) Liquidity coveraga ratio Net cash cutflow { 4 investment
over next 30 days

Ratiois calculated as per formula prescribed by the regulatory authority.

Note 32:- Contingent liabilities & Commitments

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Contingent Liabilities

(a) Claims against company not acknowledged as debts
- Income tax matters under dispute with Ld. CIT (A) 10558 22.85

- Consideration in respect of purchase of shares of Ashtech 29.22 -
Buildpro Private Limited®

The company's pending litigations comprise mainly claims agianst the company for proceedings pending
with the Income Tax authorities. The company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and
has made adequate provisions wherever required and disclosed the contingent liabilities wherever
applicable, in its financial statements. The company does not reasonably expect the outcome of theses
proceedings to have a material impact on its financial statements.

* Contingent upon certain specific outcomes as outlined in the share purchase agreement.

Commitments Year ended Year ended
31March 2023 31 March 2022

(a) Investments partly paid - Equity Shares of T 10 each in Aqua 5,146.37 -

Infra Projects Limited (% 4.00 Paid up)

(a) Investments partly paid - Equity Shares of T 10 each in Alfa 152.38 -

Buildhome Private Limited (X 5.00 Paid up)
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Note 33:- Disclosure on financial instruments
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for
which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.
The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement
and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset,
financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 3 to the financial statements.
(i) Categories of Financial Instruments
As at As at
Particulars Note
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Financial assets
a) Measured at amortised cost
i} Cash and cash equivalents 4 48.19 126.52
ii} Other bank balances 5 3.84 2,184.00
iiij Laans 5] 189.298 1,743.00
iv) Other financial assets 8 54.20 126.64
Sub-Total 296.91 4,180.16
b) Measured at fair value through OCI
(Fvaci)
i} Investment in quoted equity shares 7 1,162,206.66 1,065,001.28
i} Investment in unquoted equity shares 7 56,356.38 20,166.24
i} Investment in preference shares 7 1,346.38 1,266.41
Sub-Total 1,219,909.42 1,086,433.93
c) Measured at fair value through profit and
loss (FVTPL)
i} Investment in mutual fund 7 1,393.69 6,711.13
Sub-Total 1,393.69 6,711.13
Total financial assets 1,221,600.02 1,097,325.22
Financial liabilities
a) Measured at amortised cost
i) Trade Payable 12 35.82 -
ii) Other financial liabilities 13 6.14 8.22
Total financial liabilities 41.96 8.22
. J
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(ii) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for
which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the
inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three
levels prescribed under the accounting standards.

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on
entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrumentisincludedin level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
includedinlevel 3.

(iii) Valuation technique used to determine Fair Value

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

e the fair value of invetsment in quoted equity shares and mutual funds is measured at quoted price or NAV.

e the fair value of level 2 instruments is valued using inputs based on information about market participants
assumptions and other data that are available.

{iv) Fair value of Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at Fair value - recuriing Fair Value Measuremehts

Particul As at 31 March 2023 Asat 31 March 2022
I Level 1 Level 2 Level 1 Level 2
Financial assets

Investment in quoted equity instruments 1,162,206.66 . 1,065,001.28 .
Investment in ungueted equity instruments - 56,356.38 20,166.24
Investment in debt instruments - 1,346.38 - 1,266.41
Investment in mutual fund 1,393.69 - 6,711.13

Total financial assets 1,163,600.35 57,702.76 1,071,712.41 21,432.65

(v) Significant estimates

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation
techniques. The Company uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. For details of the key
assumptions used and the impact of changes to these assumptions see (ii) above.

(vi) Fair value of assets and liabilities measured at cost/amortised cost

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values since the Company does not anticipate that the carrying amount would be
significantly different from the values that would be eventually received or settled. Management assessed
that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, Other financial assets and other financial
liabilities approximate their carryingamounts of these instruments, as discussed below:
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it As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 48.19 48,19 126.52 126.52
Other bank balances 3.84 3.84 2,184.00 2,184.00
Loan 189.98 129.98 1,743.00 1,743.00
Other financial assets 54.90 54.50 126.64 126.64
Financial liabllitles
Trade payables 35.82 35.82 - -
Other financial liabilities 6.14 6.14 822 8.22
{vil} Maturity analysis of assets and llabilities
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Particulars After 12
Within 12 months ’ Within 12 menths | After 12 months
months
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 48.19 - 126.52 -
Other bank balances 3.84 - 2,184.00 -
Loan 18998 - 1,743.00 -
Investments 1,393.68 1.215,909.43 6,711.13 1,085,433.93
Other financial assets 54.90 - 126.64 -
Total financial assets 1,690.59 1,219,909.43 10,891.29 1,086,433.93
Nen-financial assets
Current tax assets (Net) 63.14 - 63.14 -
Property, plant & equipment - 519.20 - 519.20
Other non-financial assets 0.44 - 131 -
Total non financial assets 63.58 519.20 64.45 519.20
Total assets 1,754.17 1,220,428.63 10,955.74 1,086,953.13
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 35.82 - - -
Other financial liabilities 6.14 - 8.22 -
Total financial liabilities 41.96 - 8.22 -
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (Net) 40,76 - 39.38 -
Provisions 18.92 - 15.27 -
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 0.83 52,366.57 16.67 34,790.54
Other non-financial liabilities 0.68 - 0.79 -
Total non financial liabilities 61.19 52,366.57 72.11 34,790.54
Total liabilities 103.15 52,366.57 80.33 34,790.54
Net aquity 1,65L.02 1,168,062.06 10,875.41 1,052,162.59
. J
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Note 34

Financial risk management

The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company registered with the Reserve Bank of India. On account of
its business activities it is exposed to various financial risks associated with financials products such as credit
or default risk, market risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and inflationary risk. However, the Company has a
robust financial risk management system in place to identify, evaluate, manage and mitigate various risks
associated with its financial products to ensure that desired financial objectives are met. The Company's
senior management is responsible for establishing and monitoring the risk management framework within
its overall risk management objectives and strategies, as approved by the Board of Director. Such risk
management strategies and objectives are established to identify and analyse potential risks faced by the
Company, set and monitor appropriate risk limits and controls, periodically review the changes in market
conditions and assess risk management performance. Any change in Company's risk management
objectives and policies needs prior approval of it's Board of Directors.

Credit risk

This risk is common to all investors who invest in bonds and debt instruments and it refers to a situation
where a particular bond/debenture issuer is unable to make the expected principal payment interest rate
payment, or both. Similarly, a lender bears the risk that the borrower may default in the payment of
contractual interest or principal on its debt obligation, or both. The entity continuously monitors defaults of
the customers and other counterparties and incorporates this information into its credit risk control.

Market risk:

Market risk is a form of systematic risk associated with the day-to-day fluctuation in the market prices of
shares and securities and such market risk affects all securities and investors in the same manner. These daily
price fluctuations follows its own broad trends and cycles and are more news and transaction driven rather
than fundamentals and many a times, it may affect the returns from an investment. Market risks majorly
comprises of two types - interest rate risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commaodity risk.
Financial instruments affected by market risks include borrowings and investments.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is a type of systematic risk that particularly affects fixed rate debt instruments like bonds and
debentures. The value of the fixed-rate debt instruments generally decline due to rise in interest rates and
vice versa. The rationale is that a bond is a promise of a future stream of payments; an investor will offer less
for a bond that pays-out at a rate lower than the rates offered in the current market. A rising interest rate
scenario also affects the Company's interest expenditure on borrowed funds.

The Company monitors the interest rate scenarios on a regular basis and accordingly takes investments
decisions as whether to invest in fixed rate debt instruments, shares and securities at a particular point of
time.

Pricerisk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market traded
price. It arises from financial assets such as investments in equity instruments, bonds, mutual funds etc. The
Company is exposed to price risk arising mainly from investments carried at FVOCI which are valued using
quoted prices in active markets. A sensitivity analysis demonstrating the impact of the change in market
prices of these instruments from the prices existing as at the reporting date is given below:

N
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Carrying value as at
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Particulars

Investments carried at FVCCI valued using

; ’ . 1,162,206.66 1,065,001.28
qguoted prices in active market

Sensitivity analysis on total
comprehensive income upon
| fluctuation of market orices
Increase by 10 % |Decrease by 10

Particulars

Impact on total comprehensive income for
year ended 31 March 2023
Impact on total comprehensive income for
year ended 31 March 2022

116,220.67 (116,220.67)

106,500.13 (106,500.13)

Equity instrument through OCI being a component of other equity would increase/decrease as a result of
gain/loss on equity securities classified as fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity refers to the readiness of the Company to sell and realise its financial assets. Liquidity risk is one of
the most critical risk factors for Companies which is into the business of investments in shares and securities.
It is the risk of not being able to realise the true price of a financial asset, or is not being able to sell the
financial asset at all because of non-availability of buyer Unwillingness to lend or restricted lending by Banks
and Financial Institutions may also lead to liquidity concerns for the entities.

The Company maintains a well-diversified portfolio of investments in shares and securities . A dedicated
team of market experts are monitoring the markets on a continuous basis, which advises the management
for timely purchase or sale of securities. The management ensures to manage its cash flows and asset liability
patternsto ensure that the financial obligations are satisfied in timely manner.

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date.
The amounts reported are on gross and undiscounted basis.

Particulars Less than 1 year el N Total
years S years

As at 31 March 2023

Trade payables 35.82 - - 325.82

Other financial liabilities 6.14 - - 6.14
41.96 - - 41.96

As at 31 March 2022

Trade payables -

‘Other financial liabilities 8.22 - - 8.22

8.22 . - B.22
\ J

78



31ST ANNUAL REPORT DIGVIJAY FINLEASE LIMITED

CIN No. U67120WB2001PLC093899

7

(All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Inflationary risk:

Inflationary or purchasing power risk refers to the variation in investor returns caused by inflation. It is the
risk that results in increase of the prices of goods and services which results in decrease of purchasing power
of money, and likely negatively impact the value of investments. The two important sources of inflation are
rising costs of production and excess demand for goods and services in relation to their supply. Inflation and
interest rate risks are closely related as interest rates generally go up with inflation.

The Company closely monitors the inflation data and analyses the reasons for wide fluctuations thereof and
its effect on various sectors and businesses. The main objective is to avoid inflationary risk and accordingly
invest in securities and debt instruments that provides higher returns as compared to the inflation in long-
term.

Note 35-Capital management

For the purpose of Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital, other equity
reserves and borrowed capital less cash and cash equivalents. The primary objective of capital management
is to maintain an efficient capital structure to reduce the cost of capital, support corporate expansion
strategies and to maximize shareholder's value.

The entity manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions
and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the entity may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The entity
monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The entity's
policy is to keep an optimum gearing ratio. The entity includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.

Following table summarizes the capital structure of the Company.
As at As at
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022

Particulars

Borrowings - -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 48,19 126,52
Adjusted net debt (48.19) {126.52)

Total equity (*) 1,169,713.08 1,063,038.00
Net debt to equity ratio®* - =

{*} Equity includes capital and all reserves of the Company that
are managed as capital.

** As negative kept Nil.
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Note 36

Particulars required under paragraph 19 of master directions Non-Banking Financial company - Systemically
important non deposit taking company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 are given in annexure appended
hereto

Note 37

The Company entered into cancellable lease arrangements for certain accommodations. Terms of such lease
include upto one month notice by either party for cancellation, optionfor renewal on mutually agreed terms
and there are no restrictions imposed by such lease arrangements. The Company has applied the ‘short
—term lease’ exemptions for these leases. Rental expensesincurred are disclosed in Note 25 as Rent.

Note 38: Other statutory information:

(i) The company has not advanced or given loan or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Note 39:
Figures for the previous period have been regrouped and reclassified to conform to the classification of
current period wherever necessary.

Note 40:

Statement of Balance Sheet Disclosures in terms of Master direction- Non-Banking Financial Company-
Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016.

i) Capital 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Capital to Risk/Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) (%) 102.87% 118.62%
CRAR-Tier | Capital (%) 102.87% 118.62%
CRAR-Tier || Capital (%) - -
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-I1 Capital - -
Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments - -

. J
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i} Investments

A. Value of Investments
Gross Value of Investments:
a}In India

b} Qulside India

Provisions for Depreciation:

afIn India
b Qutside India

Net Value of Invesiments
a} In India
b} Outside India

B. Mavement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments

Opening Balance

Add: Provisions made during the year
Less: Write-off/Write-back of excess provisions during the year

Closing Balance

iii) Derivatives

31 March 2023

(All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2022

1,221,303.11

1,221,303.11

The Company does not have any derivatives exposure in the currentand previous financial year.

iv) Disclosures relating to Securitisation

1,093,145.06

1,093,145.06

The Company does not have any securitisation transaction in the current and previous financial year.

v) Asset Liability Management
Disclosures relating to maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities are given in annexure
appended hereto. Please referannexure to note 40.

N
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wi} Exposures

A) Exposure to Real Estate Sector 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Category
a) Direct Exposure

i) Residential Mortgages-
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that s or will be eccupled by the borrower or
that is rented.

i) Commercial Real Estate

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings, retal space, multi-purpose

commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial

or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, elc. ). Exposure would also

Include ron-fund based limits. e

iif) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities ([MBS) and other securitized exposures-

a. Residential - -
b. Commercial Real Estate - -

a) Indirect Exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures an Matlonal Housing Bank and Houslng Finance Companles,

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector - -

B) Exposure to Capital Market 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

i) direct investment in equity shares, corvertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity-

oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt; LA Laataesy)

i} advances against shares / bonds [ debentures ar other securities or on clean basis to individuals for
investment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of
equity-orlented mutual funds;

iii) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units
of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security; B %

iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or
convertible bonds ar convertible debentures or units of equity orlented mutual funds ie. where the
primary security other than shares / convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented
mutuzl funds does not fully cover the advances;
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(All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

w) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and
market makers; . -

vi] loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds [ debentures or other securities
or on clean basis for meeting promoter’s contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of
Faising resources;

vill bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / lssues; - -

wiiil) urderwriting commitrents taken up by the MBFCs in respect of primary issue of shares or convertible
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds - -

ix] financing to stockbrokers for margin trading

x) all expasures to Alternative Investment Funds:
fa) Category | - -
(b} Category Il - -
fc) Category I . i

Total Exposure te Capital Market 1,218,563.05 1,091,803.97

C) Details of financing of parent company products
The Company does not have a parent company and accordingly no disclosures required.

D) Details of Single Borrower Limit (SBL)/Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the NBFC
There are no instances of exceeding the single and group borrowing limit by the Company during the current
and previous year.

E) Unsecured Advances
The Company does not have any unsecured advances for which intangible securities such as charge over
rights, license, authority, etc. has been taken.

vii) Miscellaneous

A) Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators
The Company has not obtained any registration from other financial sector regulators.

B) Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBl and other regulators
There have been no penaltiesimposed on the Company by RBI or other financial sector regulators during the
current and previous financial year.

C) Related Party Transactions
Details of all material related party transactions are disclosed in Note 30.

D) Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year
Not applicable

N
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E) Remuneration of Directors
Details relating to remuneration of directors are disclosed in Note 30. All pecuniary relationship or
transactions of the Non Executive Directors vis a vis have been disclosed in the Annual Report.

F) Management

The management discussion and analysis report for the year ended March 31, 2023 forms part of the Annual
Report.

G) Sectoral Exposures

As at 31 March 2023
Percentage of
Sectors Total exposure Gross NPAs  |Gross NPAs to
(Xin lakhs) (X in lakhs) total exposure in
that sector
1. Agriculture and allied industries 1,950.00 1,950.00 100.00%
2. Services
i. Transport Operators 190.74 -
Total 2,140.74 1,950.00 91.09%
As at 31 March 2022
Percentage of
Sectors Total exposure Gross NPAs  |Gross NPAs to
(Xin lakhs) (X in lakhs) total exposure in
that sector
1. Agriculture and allied industries 1,950.00 1,950.00 100.00%
2. Services
i. Transport Operators 1,750.00 -
Total 3,700.00 1,950.00 52.70%
G) Intra Group Exposures
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(i} Total amount of intra group exposures -
{ily Total amount of top 20 Intra group

eXposures

[ili) Percentage of intra-group expasuras ta

total exposures of the company on the -
borrowersfcustomers

During the year, the Company had granted loans amounting to X360.00 lakhs to group companies. However,
the company has no outstanding loans to group companies as at the balance sheet date.
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H) Unhedged foreign currency exposures
The Company does not have any unhedged foreign currency exposures for the financial year ended 31 March
2023 and 31 March 2022
vii) Additional Disclosures
A) Provisions and Contingencies
"Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in Statement of Profit and
Loss”
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provisions for depreciation on Investment - -
Provision towards NPA - {50.00)
Provision made towards Income tax 1,120.00 1,858.25
Cther Provision and Contingencies (including employee benefits) 3.70 9.79
Provision for Standard Assets 0.76 6.94
B) Draw Down from Reserves
There have been no instances of draw down from reserves by the Company during the current and previous
financial year.
C) Concentration of Advances, Exposures and NPAs
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
4) Cancentration of Advances
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 2,140.74 3,700.00
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances 100% 10026
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
b} Concentration of Exposuras
Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers 2,140.74 3,700.00
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to total exposure on
borrawers/customers 100% 100%
¢) Concentration af NPAs
Total exposure to top four NPA accounts 1,950,00 1,950,00
d) Sector-wise NPAs
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Agriculture & allled activities 1,950.00 1,950.00
MSME . "
Corporate borrowers -
Services -
Unsecured personal loans - -
Auto loans - -
Other personal loans -
. J
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e) Movement of NPAs
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
i} Net NPAs to net advances (%) - -
ii) Movement of NPAs (Grass)
a) Opening balance 1,950.00 2,000.00
b) Additions during the year - -
c) Reductions during the year - 50.00
d) Closing balance 1,950.00 1,950.00
iii) Movement of net NPAs
a) Opening balance - -
b) Additions during the year - -
c) Reductions during the year - -
d) Closing balance - -
iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs
{excluding provisions on standard assets}
a) Opening balance 1,950.00 2,000.00
b) Provisions made during the year - -
¢} Write-off /write-back of excess provisions - 50.00
d) Closing balance 1,950.00 1,950.00
f) Overseas Assets (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad)
The Company did not have any overseas assets during the current and previous year.
g) Off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored (which are required to be consolidated as per accounting norms)
The Company did not sponsor any SPVs during the current and previous financial year.
Disclosure of custemer complaints
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year NIL NIL
b) No. of complaints received during the year NIL NIL
c) No. of complaints disposed during the year NIL NIL
- of which number of complaints rejected by the NBFC NIL NIL
d} No. of complaints pending at the end of the year NIL NIL
NIL NIL
Note:
Amounts for the current year and comparative years included above are based on the financial statements
prepared under Ind AS.
. J
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Note 41
Disclosures in terms of RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No0.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 04
November 2019 have been given below:
{i) Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty on borrowings 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Number of significant counterparties - -
Amount of barrowed funds from significant counterparties - -
Percentage of total deposits Not applicable | Not applicable
Percentzge of total liahilities - -
Note:
i) A “Significant counterparty” is defined as a single counterparty or group of connected or affiliated
counterparties accounting in aggregate for more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI’s, NBFC-Ds total liabilities and
10% for other non-deposit taking NBFCs.
ii) Total Liabilities has been computed as Total Assets less Equity share capital less Reserve & Surplus and
computed basis extant regulatory ALM guidelines.
(ii) Top 20 large deposits (amountinX lakhs and % of total deposits)
The company has not taken any deposits for the FY 22-23
(iii) Top 10 borrowings
The company does not have any borrowings for the FY 22-23
(iv) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument / product
As an 31 March 2023 As on 31 March 2022
R RS R Amount (+#) | **°f tota! Amount(**)  |%of total liabilities
liabilities
Debt securities Not applicable | Not applicable Not applicable | Not applicable
Borrowings [other than debt securities) - = =
Trade Payables 35.82 0.07% - -
Other Financial Liablities 614 _ 0.01%| . B22| 0.02%|
Note:
(i) A "significant instrument/product" is defined as a single instrument/product of group of similar
instruments/products which in aggregate amount to more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI's, NBFC-Ds total
liabilities and 10% for other non-deposit taking NBFCs.
(ii) Total liabilities has been computed as total assets less equity share capital less reserve & surplus and
computed basis extant regulatory ALM guidelines.
(**) Figures are based on gross borrowing outstanding and does not includes accrued interest and other Ind
AS adjustments.
. J
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(V) Stock ratios in percentage 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022

L. Commercial papers as a % of total liabilities
2. Commercial papers as a % of total assets . .
3. Commercial papers as a % of public fund - -

4. Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total liabilities

5. Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total assets
6. Non-convertible debentures {original maturity of lass than one year) as a % of public fund - -
7. Other short-term liabilities as a % of total liabilities 0.08% 0.03%
8. Other short-term liabilities as a % of tatal assets 0.00% 0.00%
9. Other short-term liahilities as a % of public fund

(vi) Institutional set-up for Liquidity Risk Management

The Board of Directors of the Company has an overall responsibility and oversight for the management of all
therisks, including liquidity risk, to which the Company is exposed to in the course of conducting its business.
The Board approves the governance structure, policies, strategy and the risk limits for the management of
liquidity risk. The Board of Directors approves the constitution of the Risk Management Committee (RMC)
for the effective supervision, evaluation, monitoring and review of various aspects and types of risks,
including liquidity risk, faced by the Company. The meetings of RMC are held at quarterly interval. Further,
the Board of Directors also approves constitution of Asset Liability Committee (ALCO), which functions as the
strategic decision-making body for the asset-liability management of the Company from risk-return
perspective and within the risk appetite and guard-rails approved by the Board. The main objective of ALCO
is to assist the Board and RMC in effective discharge of the responsibilities of asset liability management,
market risk management, liquidity and interest rate risk management and also to ensure adherence to risk
tolerance/limits set up by the Board. ALCO provides guidance and directions in terms of interest rate,
liquidity, funding sources, and investment of surplus funds. ALCO meetings are held once in a Quarterly or
more frequently as warranted from time to time. The minutes of ALCO meetings are placed before the RMC
andthe Board of Directors in its next meeting for its perusal/ approval/ ratification.

(vii) RBImoratorium & restructuring
No restructuring of loans/ borrowings has been taken place during the current year and previous year.

Note42:
Events after reporting date

There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these standalone financial
statements

N
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Note43:

Other than the above disclosures, the remaining other disclosures as prescribed in Amended Division Il of
Schedule Il read with section 129 of Companies Act 2013 are either NIL or Not Applicable to the company for

the current period.

In terms of our report attached
For S. Jaykishan

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 309005E

CA. Vivek Newatia
Partner
Membership No. 062636

Place : Kolkata
Date: 30th June 2023

For and on behalf of the Beard of Directors

Gourav Perlwal
Director
DIN: OB643886

Krishna Kumar Thakur
Manager & CFO

Sudip Kumar Mukherjee
Director
DIN: 00029362

Sumit Jain
Company Secretary
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Schedule of non-deposit taking non banking financial company
[as required in terms of para 19 of Non-Banking Financial Company - Systematically
Important Non-Deposit taking company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank),
Directions, 2016, as amended.]
Annexure to Note 36

(All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

31.03.2023 31.03.12022
Particula Amount Amount Amount Amouni
outstanding overdue outstanding  overdue
Liabilities side
{1} Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs inclusive of
interest accrued thereon but not paid:
(2) Deferred cradits - - &
(b} Term loans - - -
{c) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing - = -
(d) Commercizl paper - - -
{e) Other loans - = -
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Amount Amount
Assets side: outstanding outstanding

(2) Break-up of loans and advances including bills receivables
[other than those Included in (3) below]:

fa) Secured - -
{b} Unsecured 208.03 1,870.32

(3) Break up of leased assets and stock en hire and other assets
counting towards AFC activities

(i} Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
{a) Financial lease - -
k) Operating lease - -

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
fa) Assets on hire - -
{h) Repossessed assets . _

(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed - -
(b} Loans other than {a) above - -
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(4) Break-up of investments: (net of provision for dimunition) 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(as per AS 13) Current investments: Amaunt Amount

outstanding outstanding
1. *Quoted:

(i} Shares: (a) Equity -
(b) Preference - -
(ii) Debentures and bonds - -
(1t} Units of mutual funds 1,390.38 6,614.15
(iv) Government securities - -
(v) Others - -

2. Ungquoted:

(i} Shares: (a} Equity - -
{b) Preference - -

(li) Debentures and bonds - -

{iii} Units of mutual funds - -

(iv) Government securities - -

(v) Others - -

Long Term investments:
1. * Quoted:

(i} Share: {(a) Equity 43,640.70 36,475.98
{b) Preference - -
(i) Debentures and bonds - -
(iii} Units of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government securities - -
(v) Others (please specify) - -

2. *Unguoted:

(i) Shares: {a) Equity 6,942.00 2,874.08
{b) Preference 828.31 828.31
(ii) Debentures and bonds - -
(iii} Units of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government securities - -
(v) Others (Please specify) - -
52,801.38 46,792.52

*Considered at original cost
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(5) Borrower group-wise classification of all leased assets, stock on hire and loans and advances (including
other Current Assets):
Amount net of provisions Amount net of provisio
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Category Secured Unsecured Secured Unsecurad
1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries - - - -
(b} Campanies in the same group - - - -
(c) Other related parties 0.30 - 150
2. Other than related parties - 207.73 - 1,368 82
= 208.03 N 1,870.32
(6) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted
and unquoted):
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Market Value Market Value
k Value
Sitia Jbreak up/or Bo;‘ﬂ o Jbreak up/or fair Book Value
egory fair value or Brovialond] value or Net of Provisions)
NAV NAV
1. Related Partles
(a) Subsidiaries - B -
(b) Companies in the same group® - - - -
[c) Other related parties - - - -
2. Other than related parties 1,221,303.11 52,801.38 1,093,145.06 46,792.52
Total 1,221,303.11 52,801.38 1,093,145.06 46,792.52
* “Companies in the Same Group” has been considered based on the definition provided in Explanation —I to section 45-1A
of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 read with Sections 372/370 of the Companies Act 1956 (hereinafter referred to as
the “RBI Act”).
{7} Other infarmation 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Gross non-performing assets
(a) Related parties
(b) Other than related parties 1,950.00 1,950.00
Net non-performing assets
(a) Related parties
(b) Other than related parties g
Assets acuired in satisfaction of dabt -
. J
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